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Over the past five years, we have seen a decrease in the number of boats shipped and an
increase in revenue per boat as the company's product mix shifts from smaller to larger, high-

end boats

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Operations Statement Data 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales $688288087 $79.226,224 $71182.089  $50206964  $52,557,084
Net Income {loss) (5,046,286 2,404,312 756,212 609,087 879,996
Income (loss) per share (1.05) B0 36 A3 19
Weighted average shares outstanding 4,821,087 4.819,275 4,815,188 4,761,460 4,744,457
Diluted earnings per share (1.05) 49 a5 13 18
Dituted weighted average shares outstanding 4,821,087 4,903,949 4,890.124 4825179 4,818,806

Balance Sheet Data

Current assets $12,860,669 $17,134,786 $13,023,588 $12,460,218 $ 7,848,996
Total Assels ‘ 32,895,795 37,860,360 33,034,252 30621143 25,928,504
Current liabilities 12,876,082 13,232.828 11,062,016 6,782,584 11,646,433
Long term debt 15,974,235 16,228,700 15,433,446 17868178 9,010,527

Stockholdsrs’ equity 3,964,602 8093689 6,538,700 5721726 4,968,811




LETTER FROM CEO REGGIE FOUNTAIN

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

The entrepreneurial spirt is at the core of our compa-
ny. The desire to win every race has shaped Fountain
Dowerboals into an aggressive COmMparty with the
experience and drive 10 triumph over obstacles and

stay the course for continued success.

In fiscal 20086, with the recreational marine industry
slowly slipping into a decling, we charted an aggres-
sive course of action to maintain the company's tre-
mendous year-over-year growth. Our plan proved
successiul, We reported the best revenue year in the

history of Fountain Powerboats — the plan works.

In 2007, with rising interest rates, higher gas prices,
higher insurance rates and, more significantly, declin-
ing consumer confidence, we drew upon our entre-
preneurial spirit for innovative ideas that would enable

us 1o stay the course and continue our growth,

We finished the year at $68.8 milion, on target With
projections, but the first sales decrease in six years.
The decline was due to an 18 percent decrease in the
number of units soid. We had a low dealer inveniory
with approximaitaly five boats per dealer. Cur backlog
at the end of the year was approximaiely $16.8 milion.

I the fourth quarter, our cost-cutting efforts in rmanu-

facturing and SG&A allowed us 1o refurn to profit-

alzility, with income
fromm operations
of $568,000 and
net income before
taxes of $432,000.
We expect to camy
this trend through

fiscal 2008.

We are keenly focused on bulding fhe best boats in
the industry and our motto, “The fastest, safest, best
handling boat on the water,” prevails today. Duringthe
year, we continued to improve the quaiity of our boats
by standardizing sought-after features on several
popular models and completely redesigning the 35’
Lightring sport boat for much improved performance.
We also introduced a fuel-efficient 38 Sport Fish
Cruiser powered by triple Mercury Verado outboards,
which is by far the best handiing and performing fish

boat we have built.

We continue to buid and improve the quality of our
desler network. This year, members of management
worked alongsicde our dealers at amost every boat
show, lending their product knowledge and assising
with closing the deals. When the market is tough, the

best, most knowledgeable salesperson wins the order.




In 2008 we will manage our biusiness

conservatively to maintain quality and profitzability.

Tokeep our dealers’ sales team's selling skills sharply
hened and their knowledge of our latest technol-
ogy current, we held two Fountain University courses
this past year. And while boat show attendance has
declined, our well-trained dealership sales teams have
continued {0 increase sales and expand their busi-
ness — comprehensive and acute education has an

excellent RO

This year, our intemational sales distributor contrib-
uted over nine percent of our revenue. INdustry ana-
lysts all agree that sales within the maring industry are
somewhat cyclical, and a strong international reach
has helped and will continue to help balance the cycli-
cal behavior of the U.S. recreational boat market. We
expect to see continued intermational growth through

increased brand recognition and market penatration.

While industry analyst expectations for the com-
iNg vear vary, we believe it is important
to remain nimble so we can take advan-
tage of changing market demands. We
lowered our head count through normal
attrition, while retaining skilled employees,
to meet manufacturing dermands over
the next 12 months. We are aggressively
protecting our competitive advantage by

adding new models, improving existing

designs and expanding our standard suite of features.
We are managing our business conservatively to
mainiain profitability. in the following pages, our team

will share our 2008 initiatives with you.

In surmMmary, we are staying the course, which is criti-
cal as we are making continued progress and posi-
tioning Fountain Powerboats for long-term, sustain-
able success. We appreciate your continued support

as we move rapidly on this important journeay.

Sincerely,

WW

Reggie Fountain

Chairman and Chief Executive Officaer




Early fiscal 2007 bookings indicated that considerable
challenges lay anead. When second and third quarter
sales began lagging behind budget, an experienced
fFountain sales and marketing team was launched into
geographic regions to focus onincreasing retail sales.
The strategy was successful and the company fin-
ished 2007 with the third highest sales production year
inits 28-year history. In spite of the market downturn,
Fountain Powerboats’ focus on "back te the basics”
cf retail seling in .partnership with its dealer network

proved a winner.

Being observant, nimkle and innovative are key
components to continued success. In fiscal 2007,
Fountain management infroduced a number of initia-
tives that set the course for success over the next

several years, Management firmly believes these ini-

tiatives wil allow Fountain Powerboats to expand mar-

LEAN MANUFACTURING TEAM REVIEWING
WEEKLY PROGRESS.

STAYING THE COURSE FOR SUCCESS

ket share, maintain revenue and increase profitability
and, as we continue to monitor economic conditions
and gauge consumer confidence, we will adjust these
initiatives to maintain steady production and realistic

backlog levels.

2008 INITIATIVES

LEAN MANUFACTURING

In 2006, we began implementing the practices of the
Toyota Production System (TPS), or what is cormmonly
called Lean Manufacturing, through pilot projects in
our manufacturing faciities. These practices are the
framework and philcsophy organizing manufacturing
facilities and the interaction of these facities with sup-
pliers and customers. The company provided inten-
sive classroom education 1o teach these practices to

all levels of management.

We found that Lean Manufacturing is more than
the organization of manufacturing facilities to elimi-
nate waste and increase profitakility. [t is a shift in the
principles of organizational culture. Cur managers
and employees learned to think outside the box, to
challenge sach other, and explore methodologies

that allew them 1o do more with iess - trimming time,




For optimum efficiencies in labor infensive operations, a vorld class
and company wide culture of best manufacturing practices is essential.

materials and marpcow-
er. This has significantly
increased efficiencies in
the areas where these
principles  have been
adopted, and wil con-

finue 1o improve margin

percentages from our

R. DAVID KNIGHT, PRESIDENT ~ manufaciuring  opera-

fions and strengthen cur fiscal results,

The first pilot project tock place in the Final
Assembily Department, focusing on one product fam-
ity and reducing manufacturing hours by 25 per-
cent.  Implementation of Lean Manufacturing in our
Mating Departrment (where the hull, deck and liner are
attached) reduced labor hours by over 17 percent and
eliminated expensive ovartime hours. Inlabor intensive

operations this represents a significant improvement.

This is just the beginning of an implemeantation pro-
cess that will take approximately two more years to
iNncorporate throughout the entire operaticn.  During
the process, we expect 1o see continued Improve-
mentsin the manufacturing process, eliminating waste
and increasing profit margins, while delivering the qual-

fty products our Customears expect.

DEALER NETWORK

It's true that interest rates have risen, insurance rates
are up and the cost of gascline has increased, but our
successfuldealershave notlet those factors keepthem
from reporting record sales. We continue to reach out
1o the exgerts, our successiul dealers, 1o understand

the key reascns for their continued success.

‘It has been another great year with Fountain
Powerboats, We are up this year in the sales of new
and used beats and, in the first four months, have
already generated 50 percent mors revenue than our
total revenue reported for last year, We have devel-
oped a niche market and are confident in our akbility
to sell Fountain sport boats and exprass cruisers to

this market.

To be succeassful you must be passionate, you must
understand your target markat and be intimatety famil-

iar with the Fountain boats that sell into your niche mar-

ket. Dealershipsalesare & AP J
cdown because many of
7

the dealers lack com- LY : L =nACURY
" UN AWARD

mitment - you have t©

wake up at 6 am. ad

go to bed at 10.00 pm,

eating and breathing

what you do. | beleve




that's why 50 few dealers are successful when the
market gets a litle tough, Hands down, Fountain
builds the best product in the industry. Keep up the

gocd work.”

Quote from Scott Sjogren of Shogren Performance

Marine. Sjegren has been one of Fountain Powerboats’

most successful dealers for the last 4 vears.

CEQ REGGIE FOUNTAIN, THE CONSUMMATED SHOWMAN, AT A BOAT SHOW

This year, the management team has been on the
road working alongside our dealers at the major indus-
try shows and the smatier regional shows held all over
the LS, The time spent with our dealers has given
us an cpportunity to evaluate our distribution chan-
nel. The old adage that 20 percent of your dealers
produce 80 percent of yvour sales is true. S0 over the

past several months, we removed exclusive territories

Without a motivated distribution channel there is no
growth. Without passion, there is no motivation.

from under-performing dealerships and have expand-
ed the gecgraphical reach of our more successful
ones. In doing so, wa reduced the number of deaiers

1o approximately 32.

We will continue to recruit dealers that have & proven
track record and a passion for success. Management
will continue tc work ciosely with all of our dealers
by providing new sales tools, which include
improved marketing data for customer
targeting and inventory selection, as well
as educational video clips and marketing
materials for retun custormers who want
o upgrade their boat, or first-ime buyers
of Fountain Powerboats, Going forward,
we wil be even more invalved in heiping
our dealars improve sales through factory
demonstrations, increased sales assistance
at boat shows, and ongoing educational pro-

grams through Fountain University.

The quality of our international dealer netwaork contin-
uestoimprove and, at thistime, we have amore mature
degler network that has succoessfully mantaned s
sales volume at status gue throughout 2007, and prol-

ects 15 t© 20 percent growth in sakes for 2008,




Our international dealers are driving market aware-

ness by sponsoring the Eurcpean Pro Racing Circuit
series, along with highly focused marketing cam-
paigns. Fountain boeats are becoming more popular
as customers begin to recognize the long term value
and performance vs. cost ratio across Fountain's
complete product line. A contributing factor to this
success is the introduction of Mercury Maring's line of
engines that comply with the Furopean noise apate-

ment codes and envircnmental requirements.

In support of our dealer network, the opening of a
Fountain Dealers’ Factory Super Store is underway.
The super store will carry an inventory of product ines,
will be able to conduct in-water demonstrations for

prospeciive buyers, and hald classes for new boaters

1o better understand how to get the best performance

from their Fountain powerboat. The super store alse
will provide sales coverage for the Eastern regions of

MNorth Carolina and South Carolina.

FOUNTAIN: WHERE
PERFORMANCE MEETS
LUXURY.

DATE LINE . . . DATE LINE. . .

GERMANY, JULY 2, 2007

Fourtain Powerboats Dominate the World by Winning
This Weekend in Germary and Sarasota, Florida . . . .
King of Shaves, a 42 foct Fountain, takes the victory
in the Powerboat P1 Class of the Gerrman Grand Prix
of The Sea .... The Florida Guif proved no challenge
as a 42 foot Fountain manhandled the compsetition

taking both first and second place in the hard-fought

Super-Vee class at the 23rd Annual Sarasota

Suncoast Offshore Grand Prix. . ..

ITALY, MAY 27, 2007

Fountain Worldwide, LLC, completed its first
race in the European offshore racing series P1in
true Fountain fashion, dominating oth races in
the ltalian Grand Prix of the Sea . . .. 32-second

lead over the second place Donzi . . ..

PRESIDENT DAVID KNIGHT SHARES THE SUPERIORITY OF FOUNTAIN

BOATS WITH DEALERS




UNITED STATES, MAY 18, 2007

Fountain 38 foot center console Tournamsant Fish
Edition averages speeds of 87.8 MPH, setting the
Armerican Poker Run Associations center console
world spead record . . in a Fountain powerboat, tour-
nament anglers don't have to worry about getting to

the winning fish first . . ..

Fountain Powerboats has held the world V-bot-
tom speed record for almost twenty years, With our
latest record standing at a blistering 171.883 MPH,
other powerboat manufacturers trying to clinch this
record have continued to stay in our wake. Speeds
of over 171 MPH are only achievable with boats builk

using superior technology, efficiency and innovative

hull design, the exact features educated consumers
demand when purchasing a high performance fish

boat, express cruiser cr sport boat,

with their innovative design and superior handling
capability, Fountain boats have dominated the offshore
racing circult since the 1980s. Team Fountain holds
more werld and naticnal championships than all other
manufacturers combined.  This season Fountain's
dominance in the V-boltorm world continues as our
three newly designed 42’ canopy race boats are liter-

ally unstoppaltie.

Fountain's racing dominance is now worldwide with

recent wins during the Powerboat P1 European racing

A

nia.

CRAIG WILSON & JAMES SHEPPARD OF THE FOUNTAIN WORLD WIDE BOAT ON THE WINNERS BLOCK
AT THE GERMAN GRAND PRIX OF THE SEA




Reggie Fountain, the consummate winner, can always be found
at the drawing board or on the factory foor exploring nevs con-
ceplts that not only enhance the appearance of a Fountain 5oal

but also improve performance, handling and fuel efficiency.

circuit and offshore race circuits sponsored by Super
Boat International, the Union of Internaticnal Motor
Beoating and the American Powerboat Association.
Offshore racing significantly enhances our brand
iImage and demonstrates the superiority of Fountain's

censtruction and design.

FOUNTAIN STANDS ALONE IN THE
WORLD OF HIGH PERFORMANCE
BOATING

We are proud to have the fastest, safest, best han-
ding, and most fuel efficient boats on the water. During
fiscal 2007, we made significant enhancements to our
product lines. Cur 35 foot Lightning ICBM premiered
with a staggered engine configuration, improvements
on the legendary Lightning hull—which conguered the
world of offshore racing, and high tech bells and whis-
tes including a carbon fiber dash, a newly designed

cabin, and bullet speeds of over 100 MPH.

Alsc new and improved is the 38 foot Lightning,
which has won multiple world and national champicn-
ships. The Fountain battle-tested pad keel, notched
transom, positive lift hull, completed with staggered
twin Mercury 700's, has a new low center of gravity
- just where it belongs, when rocketing through the

water at 112 MPH. With its newly designed cabin it wen

ABLE TO REAGH SPEEDS OVER
100 MPH WITH STOCK TWIN MERCURY 525 EFIS

the coveted Powerboat Magazine "Offshore Boat of

the Year" award in 2007.

s aflsh beat. It's a sport boat. t's a cruiser. t's the
best handiing and best performing Fountain fish boat
aver built: the 38 foot Sport Fish Cruiser (SFC). With
speeds up © 64 MPH, equipped with triple Mercury
Varado outiboards, or speeds up to 52 MPH, equipped
with twin Mercury Verado outboards, the 38 SFC

cruises at 40 MPH at a range of over 500 miles or




1.4 MPG. This hard-hitting boat offers the ultimate in

speed, fuel efficiency and versatility.

With Reggie Fountain running the show, the excite-
ment never stops. We are putting the finishing touches
on the updated 47 foot Lightring.  Not much to do to
improve this marine legend, but spruce up the cockpit
with the latest techrology and add a bit of spice to the

cabin design.

In 20C8, the 33 foot Sport Fish Cruiser's legendary
Fountain stepped hull wil be redesigned for perfor-

mance with improved step locations to provide an

even smoother and more stable ride in all types of
water conditions and at all speeds, Fountain recom-
mends twin Mercury Veradio cutboards to match the

performance of the 38 foot Sport Fish Cruiser OB,

The 48 foot Express Cruiser (48EC) will now be avail-
able with new twin Cumming 480HP diesel engines
that reduce the overall cost of the cruiser and operat-

iNg costs, while maintaining its incredible speed.

And the last addition to the 2008 models will be the
introduction of the new 32 foot Sport Boat, com-

plete with the redesigned Lightning series interior

and Mercury 425HFP stern drive
engines, which will perform at speeds

approaching 90 MPH.

We are pleased that our partner,

Mercury Marine, has recently intro-

duced new 30CHP Verado engines
that provide our custorners with a sig-
nificant improvement in fuel efficien-
cy. These engines have animproved
mid-range torque and cruising per-
forrmance and can be packaged with

an extended warranty.

s Nl

THE NEW 42 LIGHTNING CABIN HAS RICH CHERRY WOOD LAMINATE, A CORIAN COUNTER
TOP, INCREASED SEATING AND A MORE SPAGIOUS FEEL.




Catch up with Reggie as he hosts the new American Ps7rzrboat
Show on Fox Sporfs Network airing beginning in Ooicber

nsaaférbwvwr;-s-.u ERICAN

When Reggie decided to kick Fountain's marketing
program up a notch or two, he was dead serious,
This year the Fountain team will reach out to over 117
million householis through the new Reggie Fountain
American Powerboat TV Show.  In final development
stages, this 30 minute program will e dedicated to
the world of high performance boating and will be
aired on the Fox Sports Network,  The program will
include valuable tips and proven technigues from the
legendary Peggie Fountain, in addition to flag-to-flag

coverage of the OSS Racing Series. high perfor-

mance fishing from the Armerican Striper and Scuthern
Kingfish Association, and highlights from Super Boat
International, The American Powerboat Association,
the Unicn of Intermational Motor Boating, and the

Powerboat F1 Racing Series.

Fishing boats and five world Southern Kingfish
Association champicnships are making considerable
contributions to our top ling revenue growth and
enhancing our branding efforts. Our bafief In the future
enefits of tourmrament fishing, along with a string of
tournament wins prompted Fountain to purchase
the American Striper Association, which has greatly
enhanced cur exposure in the Northeast, We will con-
tinue to use tourmament fishing 1o grow revenue and
promote brand image as we broaden our reach to the

general fish beat consumer.

American STRIPER Assoaatlon




!
S ST FRSi v CHLISE %]

=




BT

TR f FERFORMANCE
‘MR
5 P 1]

Ll

qmusr -
ol




£y B )
A KL R







e

42 BECUIIONER




S L5 NGNG




FOUNTAIN POWERBOQOATS
SPORTSWEAR - SHOW THE
WORLD YOUR FOUNTAIN COLORS

If you're not styling in a leather or black satin Fountain
Powerboats jacket over your Fountain tee or camisole,
go to www fountainpowerboats.com immediately for

a quiick shopping fix!

To make it easy for customers to proudly strut their
Fountain Powerboats colors, we offer an extensive ine
of quality Fountain fishing attire, hats, polo shirts, jack-
els, hoodies, sweaters, swirmwear and sweatshirts for
the entire family. To accessorize your Fountain boat,
you can choose from a wide selection of accessories,
including beautifully etched Fountain crystal glasses
for those sunset cruises, clocks, towels for lounging
in the sun, botile and can holders, a Fountain flag to
celebrate your Poker Bun win, or a beautifuly crafted
14 kt. gold Fountain logo pendant to add to your jew-

elry collection.

Last year, 80 percent of Fountain sportswear was
sold through the Fountain Powerboats wels site and
iiterally flew off the shelves during the boat shows in
the United States and Europe. Fountain sportswear
is comfortable, fun to wear and, lke the Fountain
brand, represents qualty and style.  With demand
for Fountain sportswear and branded accessories
increasing, Fountain is planning o expand the lines
and to make them available through paricipating

Fountain dealerships.

Currently, Fountain is carrying a stunning black
sweater from Devon and Jones' Pirk Label. These
Fink Label garments are developed with a mission in
rminck to end cancer forever! Deveon and Jones has
made a commitment to donate a portion of every sale
to cancer research. Every garment that displays ithe
Pink Label has been specialy designed by women,
for women who want comfortable, classic styles for
today's workplace. The Devon and Jones label means
uncomperomising guality, and exceptional value you

can count o every day.



A PORTION OF EVERY “PINK” SALES DOLLAR IS DONATED TO CANCER RESEAFi%CrH.




SLIP YOUR BOAT INTO SOMETHING
COMFORTABLE

NC one knows your Fountain boat better than the
factory, and Fountain Powerboats is committed
to ensuring that the customer's boat maintains its
exceptional appearance, value and pearformance.
Fountain has always carried a complete inventory of
factory parts and accessories o give a customer's
beat an updated look, add more horsepower, or a

complete restoration.

Fountain has committeé to faunching a new inter-
active web site for boat parts and accessories in
fiscal 2008. Scheduled to
be five by the fourth quar-
ter, the interactive web site
will provide customers with
an online catalog com-
plete with photos, parts and
accessories,  Simply add
itemns to your shopping cart
and pay on the way out with
a credit card. The site wil
have search features and
on-ine help o locale the

exact product you want.

Shopping for your Fountain boat accesscries wil be

guick and easy.

The new web site will carry a complete line of uphcl-
stery sking, cockpil kits, complate cabinkits thatinclude
cabinets and upholstery, along with custorn and stan-
dard dash panels, windshields, specialty parts, and
factory re-power and power upgrades - including

engines and drives.

With this new, interactive parts and accessory web

site, vour Fountain boat can look like it just relled off the

factory ins!
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Part
Item 1. Business.
Background.

Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. (the “Company™). through its wholly owned subsidiary, Fountain Powerboats, Inc. (the
*Subsidiary™), designs, manufactures and sells internationally recognized recreational offshore sport boats, sport fishing boats
and sport cruisers that target a segment of the recreational powerboat market where speed. performance, quality and safety
are the primary purchase criteria. The Company sells its boats and ancillary products through a worldwide network of 32
domestic and 24 international dealers.

Fountain Powerboats, based upon an innovative, award-winning design, are well branded within the boating industry. The
Company markets the celebrity of its Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and founder, Reginald M. Fountain Jr., an
internationally recognized designer, engineer and builder of high speed powerboats and holder of three world titles and seven
national racing championships.

Products.

Fountain continuously incorporates new and improved designs in its boats. The Company believes that the best boats come
from combining an intuitive managemernt team with hardcore experience gained by boat racing in offshore conditions. Each
boat is tested in the Pamlico River, located alongside the factory. before it is shipped to its new owner. This testing is unique
to Fountain Powerboats, as most boat manufacturers are not located on or near the water.

Fountain maintains that its boats. with their innovative design and unitized construction, are among the fastest, smoothest,
safest and best-handling boats of their kind. The expansive product line of sport cruisers, sport fishing and sport boats is
based upon a deep V-shaped fiberglass hull for speed and fuel efficiency that uses less horse power. For superb handling and
performance, the boats are designed with a notched transom and pad keel running surface and engineered with an innovative
step-bottom design.

The Company has twenty different models that fall into three categories — express cruisers, sport fishing boats and sport
boats. Initially known for its sport boats, Fountain Powerboats has evolved into a company with a wide variety of boats for
the most discriminating boater.

Fountain Powerboats has captured market share approaching 50 percent of the high performance sport boat market and offers
eight different sport boat models ranging from the 29° Fever to the 47" Lightning. These V-bottom boats carve turns at all
speeds, even when being propelled at over 100 MPH by twin or triple Mercury 525 engines.

Fountain Powerboats has become well known for its upscale. high performance and elegant Express Cruisers which redefine
the term “performance cruiser”. The cruiser market had been growing as the populace ages and begins to look for not only
speed but luxurious amenities for the entire family. Fountain Powerboats, with its 38" and 48’ Express Cruisers is poised with
the right products to capitalize on the niche of this market that desires high performance.

A long established water sport is continuing to grow in popularity — tournament fishing. With the advent of popular sport
fishing television shows and two quality sport fishing competition programs, the American Striper Association Tournaments
and the Southern Kingfish Association Tournaments, the Company has significantly expanded its line of sport fishing boats,
building a competitive edge in this fast growing markel.

Demand for Fountain sport fish boats is on the increase. These boats are designed for the fishing aficionado who demands
speed and superb amenities for his family and friends. Entering the tournament fishing market in the late 1980’s, and now
considered “the boat to beat”, the Company s fish boat product line boasts nine different models ranging from the 23” Center
Console (“CC™) to the 38" Sport Fish Cruiser cutboard.

Fountain participates in Poker Run ¢vents, which is an increasingly popular sporting event that involves large numbers of
recreational boat owners. These events are sponsored by local organizations, generally including one of the Company’s
dealers, and present a great opportunity to showcase its boats 1o an affluent audience.

During Fiscal 2007, the Company introduced a redesigned 357 sport boat model and a new 38" outbeard cruiser fish boat
maodel at the Company's annual dealer meeting in October 2006 and delivered a redesigned 38" sport boat cabin in late
spring.

The 33" sport boat was totally redesigned. including a staggered engine configuration that significantly improved
performance to speeds in excess of 100 MPH. The 35" and 38" sport boats were outfitted with a new cabin layout that will be




standard in all of the Company’s sport boats. The new cabin will be installed in the 42" and 47 sport boats during Fiscal
2008. The 38° sport boat captured the coveted Powerboat Magazine “Offshore Boat of the Year” award in Fiscal 2007.

A new 38’ sport fish cruiser outboard boat was introduced at the dealer meeting in October, 2006. It is a versatile boat that
can be used as a fish boat or for family cruising, with triple 275HP Verado engines it will run at speeds up to 64 MPH and
cruises at 40MPH at a fuel efficient 1.4 MPG.

The 33’ sport fish cruiser outboard hull will be redesigned in Fiscal 2008 to provide that model an even smoother and more
stable ride in all types of water conditions, at al} speeds, and with twin outboard Mercury Verado engines to match the
performance of the 38" sport fish cruiser outboard.

A new 327 sport boat model will be launched during Fiscal 2008, complete with the redesigned Lightning series interior and
Mercury 425HP stern drives engines. It will perform at speeds approaching 90 MPH.

In Fiscal 2008 the 48 express cruiser will be avaitable with twin Cummins diesel engines. This option will reduce the
overall cost of the boat and operating costs while maintaining high performance operating speeds.

The chart below shows the number of boats completed and shipped during the last three fiscal years by product line.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2007 2006 2005
SPOTE DOALS ...ttt ettt ettt et s ettt e et st se et s nenna, 127 167 200
EXPIESS CIUISETIS ..otttk ettt e et e ee e eeem e e e et et st esanesesseserteraraserenenees 31 42 41
SPOTL FISAIMEZ DOALS ...ttt s st et bbbttt ee e ee e 168 190 154
OBET ettt ettt et e et ettt e e et e e e 3 1 4
TOLAL .. ettt ettt n et en et e nnn 329 400 405

As of June 30, 2007 Fountain Powerboats had a backlog of firm orders for 76 boats, totaling sales of $16.8 million, all of
which are expected to be completed during Fiscal 2008. At June 30, 2006, the sales backlog was 200 boats, totaling $43
million.

Research and Development.

Staying ahead of its competition, Fountain’s employees conduct ongoing research and development pertaining to the design
of its boats” hulls and decks and its small parts production. The Company invested approximately $! million on the
development of new plugs and molds during Fiscal 2007. Over the past three fiscal years, the investments into product
development were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiseal

2007 2006 2005
Design, Research & Development ........o..ocoevvviiveeiiinccne. i) 757,186 §$ 780,520 $ 786,129
Construction of New Plugs and Molds...........ccooocoveeennnn 1,034,366 1,092,994 1,636,621

For fiscal 2008, design, research and development planned expenses are estimated to be $792,000, and plug and mold
construction expenditures are estimated to be $900,000. Primarily, these expenditures will go to upgrading the Company’s
line of sport boats in an effort to matntain its market share and enhancing its line of sport fish cruisers to continue to expand
its presence in that profitable and more stable market.

Manufacturing.

Manufacturing capacity of the facility can accommodate 40 to 45 boats in various stages of construction at any one tirme.
Construction time is approximately three to eight weeks, dependent on the product mix.

As aresult of manufacturing productivity improvements and the restructuring of the production work force to be compatible
with our reduced production rate our total headcount was reduced by 120 employees, primarily from attrition, during Fiscal
2007. The Company currently has the capacity to manufacture approximately 350 sport and fish boats, and 60 cruisers per
year of a comparable product mix as was manufactured in fiscal 2007.

The manufacturing process is labor intensive and requires seasoned craftsmen. The process for manufacturing the hull and
deck of a Fountain Powerboat is done by hand. Vinylester resins and high quality stitched, bi-directional and quad-directional
fiberglass is hand laid over a foam core in molds designed and constructed by the Company’s engineers and tooling
department. This artisan method creates a composite structure with strong outer and inner skins and a thicker, lighter core in
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between, resulting in superior strength and a finer appearance, compared to mechanically blown, chopped fiberglass used by
other manufacturers.

The resin used to bind the composite structure is vinylester, which is stronger. better bonding, blister resistent and more
flexible than the polyester resins used by most fiberglass boat manufacturers. Decks are bonded to the hull using a
combination of bonding agents, rivets, screws and fiberglass to achieve a strong unitized construction. This manufacturing
process was developed and improved upon as a result of the Company’s many years of racing experience. When a Fountain
Powerboat is traveling at 177 MPH through the water, this manufacturing process provides the speed and safety the
Company’s boats are known for.

As one of the most highly integrated manufacturers in the marine industry, Fountain manufactures many metal, plexiglass,
plastic, and small parts (such as fuel tanks, seat frames, instrument panels, bow rails, brackets, T-tops and windscreens) to
assure that its rigid quality standards are met and, if a design change is nceded to improve a boat, it can be made immediately.

The Company also manufactures all of its upholstery to its own custom specifications and benefits from receiving these parts
just in time for assembly. All other component parts and materials used in the manufacture of the Company’s boats are
readily available from a variety of suppliers at comparable prices exclusive of discounts. The Company purchases certain
supplies and matetials from a limited number of suppliers in order to obtain the benefit of volume discounts.

Recreational powerboats must be certified by the manufacturer to meet U.S. Coast Guard specifications. Their safety is
subject to federal regulation under the Boat Safety Act of 1971, as amended, pursuant to which boat manufacturers may be
required to recall products for replacement of parts or components that have demonstrated defects affecting safety. Boats
manufactured for sale in the European Community must meet CE Certification Standards.

Product Warranty.

The Company warrants the boat hull and deck structure against defects in material and workmanship for a period of six years.
Warranty costs, if any, on other components of the boats are generally absorbed by the original component manufacturer.
Warranty costs can vary depending on the size and number of components in the beats sold. The Company focuses on high
quality manufacturing programs and processes, including actively monitoring the quality of our component suppliers and
managing the dealer and customer warranty experience and reimbursements. Our estimated warranty obligation is based
upon the warranty terms, the enforcement of those terms over time, defects, repair costs, and the volume and mix of boats
sold. The estimate of warranty costs is regularly analyzed and is adjusted based on several factors including the actual claims
that occur by model and model year. The following is a table of the Company warranty expense for fiscal years 2007 and
2006:

Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006
N S8 .ottt t et e et e e bt e e n et e a e et et s et en e $ 68829987 § 79,226,224
WAITANLY EXPOIISE.ciuiiiieriiiitiiet i e s sa e e h) 1,347,511 § 1,346,521
Warranty Expense as a % of Sales........oooiiiii e et 2.0% 1.7%

Sales and Marketing.

The Company sells its products through a worldwide network of 32 domestic dealers and 24 international dealers. While
most of these dealers are not exclusive, the Company uses discretion in locating new dealers in an effort to protect the
interests of its existing dealer netwark. To attract and keep the highest producing dealers, Fountain Powerboats offers a sales
training program through its Fountain University.

The Fountain University program trains the Company’s dealers’ salespersons on: How 1o Apply Features and Benefits,
Selling in Today’s Environment, How to Overcome Objections and Close the Sale, and How to Properly Deliver a Boat. The
program also includes in-water, high performance boat training for the salespersons.




The following is a table of sales by geographic area for the last three fiscal years.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006 2005
L0551t BN 11 ST $ 60,011,000 § 70,934,584 § 65,790,034
Canada, Mexico, Central/South AMErica .........ooevvevveeeveevsesssees e onee 3,689,071 1,849,529 2,474,619
Bl 0P e ekt b e n e r e 4,059,120 2,722.920 1,417,819
Middle EASt...coviiieiicecce ettt 455,687 2,753,281 1,088,838
ATTICA ettt — 965,910 410,758
AASTR e e et e e e 300,691 — —
AUSITAIIA. ..ot cre e et see et e vt e st e et e e teete e 314,418 — —
TOLAL oo e e $ 68829987 § 79226224 § 71,182,068

Fountain Powerboats targets a significant portion of revenue for its branding and advertising programs in the U.S, and
internationally. The Company continues to expand its dealer network into Europe, South America and the Middle East. The
Company’s International sales were $8,818,987 for fiscal 2007 and $8,291,640 for fiscal 2006. The Company requires
payment in full or an irrevocable letter of credit from a domestic bank before it will ship a boat out of the U.S.

[n Fiscal 2007, one dealer accounted for i3.6 percent of sales, one accounted for 9 percent of sales and four each accounted
for 5.0 to 5.5 percent of sales. In fiscal 2006, one dealer accounted for 10.9 percent of sales, one accounted for 8.5 percent of
sales and four each accounted for 5.8 10 6.3 percent of sales. In fiscal 2005, one dealer accounted for 10.5 percent of sales,
one accounted for 6 percent of sales and three each accounted for 5.4 percent of sales.

While the loss of any particular dealer could have an adverse affect on sales, the Company believes it could find other dealers
within the same geographical area to replace a lost dealer. Sales continue to grow through existing dealers and the Company
continues to add new dealers with the goal of reducing the concentration risk in its distribution channel.

The Company has a strategically located team of sales representatives supporting existing dealer locations and developing
new dealers in targeted locations. The sales team, headed up by the President, is responsible for developing a dealer
organization for sport boats, sport fishing boats and express cruisers. The product line is extremely diverse and requires
specialized sales training and service and supportt, so the Company’s strategy is to develop individual dealers for each of its
product lines.

Fountain Powerboats does not manufacture to inventory, as its boats are pre-sold to dealers before entering the production
line. The Company can ship to dealers on a cash-on-delivery basis or through floor plan financing programs in which the
Company participates on behalf of its dealers. For Fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company has paid the interest on
the floor plan, for a certain period of time, as a sales promotion program.

The dealer’s responsibility is to establish a line of credit with one or more third-party lenders for the purchase of its
showroom inventory. When a dealer purchases a boat utilizing the floor plan arrangement, it draws against its line of credit
and the lender pays the invoice for the boat directly to Fountain Powerboats, typically within five business days. When the
boat is seld to the retail customer, the dealer repays the lender, restoring his credit line. The Company, along with most major
boat manufacturers, will repurchase its boats from a lender who has repossessed them from a dealer, if the lender returns the
boats to Fountain Powerboats in a new or like-new condition. The Company has no material obligation to repurchase boats
from its dealers.

The marketing of boats to retail customers is the responsibility of the dealer, whose efforts are complemented by Fountain
Powerboats™ advertising in boating magazines, participating in boat shows and its Sales Service Bureau responding to and
tracking leads from advertisements, boat shows and internet inquiries. To assist in brand recognition, the Company has
developed racing programs to participate in the major classes of offshore powerboat races in which many of Fountain’s single
and twin engine racing boats continue to hold their respective world speed records. Fountain Powerboats founder and CEQ
Reggie Fountain, who has won numerous races in both factory and customer owned boats and has set numerous world speed
records in both, in August 2004 set a V-bottom World Speed Record with a phenomenal 171.883 MPH on a Fountain 42°
Lightning.

To enhance brand recognition, Fountain Powerboats sponsors outstanding sport fishermen who own Fountain boats and fish
in tournaments organized by the Southern Kingfish Association (SKA) and the American Striper Association (ASA). The
Company’s fishing teams of the SKA and ASA are captained by world class anglers who can afford to purchase any beat, but
choose to run a Fountain Powerboat. The Company supports the ASA tournaments held throughout the Northeast in areas
ranging from Virginia to Maine, and the SKA tournaments held throughout the South and Southwest, from North Carolina to
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Texas. The Fountain team’s winning records have given its sport fishing boats favorable exposure to serious sport fishermen
looking for superior performance.

Competition.

Competition within the powerboat manufacturing industry is intense. The high performance sports, fish and cruiser boat
markets, which comprises only a small segment of all boats manufactured, are significant markets in terms of total dollars
spent. The manufacturers who compete with the Company in these market segments include:

Sport Boats
. Formuia, a Division of Thunderbird Products Corporation
. Baja Boats, a Division of Brunswick Corporation

. Cigarette Racing Team, In¢,
. Donzi, American Marine Holdings
. Outer Limits
. Velocity
. Hustler
Fish Boats

Contender Boats
Donzi, American Marine Holdings

. Wellcraft

L] Hydrasports

. Grady White

. Triton

. Jupiter

. Yellowfin

. Boston Whaler, a Division of Brunswick Corporation
Cruisers

. Formula. a Division of Thunderbird Products Corporation

. Donzi, American Marine Holdings

. ScaRay, a Division of Brunswick Corporation
. Sunseeker

The Company believes that in its market segments buyers select boats based on speed, performance, quality, image and
safety, with style and price being secondary considerations.

Market demographics and industry experts indicate the fish boat market offers the best growth potential within the boating
industry. Fountain Powerboats continues to expand its family of fish boats to meet the rising demand in this significant high-
growth market. The Company introduced a new model in 2007 and plans to upgrade one of its existing models tn 2008.

The Company had experienced strong demand for its higher priced cruisers prior to Fiscal 2007. This is due in part to a
populace that not only wants speed but requires the additional space to bring along the family. The Company believes that a
large number of current product owners, many of whom have purchased multiple and increasingty larger boats from the
Company, provide a target market for the fast-growing cruiser segment. Sales of this product line were weak during the first
three quarters of 2007 but made a revival in the fourth quarter.

Employees.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company had 328 employees, of which eight were executive and management personnel. Twenty-
two were engaged primanly in administrative positions, such as accounting, human resources, marketing and sales. None of
the Company’s employees are party to a collective bargaining agreement. The Company considers its employce relations to
be excellent. The Company is an equal opportunity employer.

Item 1A, Risk Factors.

General economic conditions in the United States may adversely affect the Company’s results. The Company’s
revenues may be affected by U. S. and international market conditions and consumer confidence. Any substantial
deterioration in general economic conditions which diminishes consumer confidence in any of the regions where the
Company competes could reduce the Company’s sales and adversely affect its business and financial results.




The Company’s profitability may suffer as a result of competitive product offerings and pricing pressures. The
introduction of lower-priced competitive products by other companies can hurt the Company’s competitive position. Such
competitive pricing may limit the Company’s ability to increase prices in response to raw material and other cost increases.

The Company’s financial results may be adversely affected if the Company is unable to maintain effective
distribution. The Company’s products are sold through dealers and the financial health of these dealers is critical to the
Company’s continued success. The Company’s results can be negatively affected if dealers experience higher operating costs
that can result from rising interest rates, higher rents, labor costs and taxes, and compliance with regulations.

Inventory adjustments by the Company’s major dealers adversely affects the Company’s operating margins. If the
Company’s dealers adjust their inventories downward in response to weakness in retail demand, wholesale demand for the
Company’s product diminishes. In turn, the Company must reduce production, which results in lower rates of absorption of
fixed costs and thus lower margins.

Adverse weather conditions can have a negative impact on revenues. Weather conditions can have a significant impact
on the Company’s operating and financial results. Sales of the Company’s products are generally stronger just before and
during spring and summer, and favorable weather during these months generally has a positive effect on consumer demand.
Conversely, unseasonably cool weather, excessive rainfall or drought conditions during these periods can reduce demand.
Hurricanes and other storms can result in the disruption of the Company’s manufacturing operations and its distribution
channel.

Higher energy costs can adversely affect the Company’s results and can hurt demand for the Company’s produects.
Higher energy costs increase the Company’s operating costs at its manufacturing facility and the cost of shipping its products
to dealers. In addition, the Company’s products are powered by gasoline and diesel engines and any increase in the price of
petroleum-based fuel, or the imposition of taxes or an interruption of supply, could reduce the demand for the Company’s
products.

Higher interest rates can reduce demand. Purchases of the Company’s products are often financed. Rising interest rates
can have an adverse effect on dealers’ and consumers” ability to finance boat purchases.

Disruption of deliveries from the Company’s single-source suppliers can adversely affect production and revenues.
The Company’s single-source supply and just-in-time inventory strategies of some critical boat components, including high
performance marine engines, could adversely affect production if a single-source supplier is unable for any reason to meet the
Company’s requirements on a timely basis,

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

The Company’s executive offices and manufacturing facilities are located on 65 acres along the Pamlico River in Beaufort
County, North Carolina. All of the land, buildings and improvements are owned by the Company and were held as collateral
on notes and mortgages payable outstanding at June 30, 2007. (See Note 5 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements contained izt Item 8 of this Report). The operating facility contains buildings totaling 237,360 square feet located
on fifteen acres. The buildings consist of the following:

Approximate
Square Footage Principal Use

Building 1 14,020 Executive offices, shipping, receiving, and paint shops.

Building 2 6,400 Final prep.

Building 3 106,070 Lamination, mating, small parts, upholstery, assembly, inventory, cafeteria.
Building 4 14,270 Wood shaop, consoles rigging.

Building 5 24,080 Metal fabrication.

Building 6 48,420 Tooling, service and warranty, mold maintenance, sportswear.

Building 7 11,500 Powder coating, storage, maintenance shop.

Building 8 12,600 Cruiser manufacturing.

Total 237,360




Over the last several years there have been signiticant expenditures for property. plant and equipment, which include plant
additions. a travel lift bay. a boat ramp, and docking facilities along a 600-foot canal leading to the Pamlico River. In
addition. the Company has approximately 200,000 square feet of concrete paving surrounding the buildings and providing
guest or employee parking. The present plant site can accommodate an addition of up to 300,000 square feet of
manufacturing space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company’s only operating subsidiary was a defendant in lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of
its business. including five alleged breach of warranty or product liability suits. In the Company’s opinion these lawsuits are
without merit and. theretore. the Company intends to vigorously defend its interest in such suits. The Company carries
sufficient liability and product liability insurance to cover attorney’s fees and any losses that may occur from a product
liability or breach of contract suit, over and above applicable insurance deductibles. The management of the Company
helieves that none of such current proceedings will have a material adverse effect.

The Company’s subsidiary was notified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA™) that it had been
identified as a potentially responsible party (“PRP™) in the remediation of contamination at a clean up site. The Group
administrator estimated the Company’s share of future remediation cost to be $28.105. The Company is eligible for a de
Minimus Settlement Agreement, which is expected to be finalized in 2007,

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None applicable

Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

The Company’s commeon stock. $.01 par value, trades on the American Stock Exchange (under the symbol “FPB™). The
following table lists the high and low closing prices for the Company’s common stock as reported on the American Stock
Exchange for each calendar quarter during its fiscal years ended June 30. 2006 and 2007.

Quuarter Ending High Low
September 2005 e e 5.12 3.70
eI 2005 e 6.03 3.45
MArCh 20000 e e ettt e e 8.62 5.50
June 2006 6.70 4.05
September 2006 4.55 4.00
December 2006 499 3.63
T 2007 et e et et r ettt et a e e 4.38 375
JURC 2 T e e e e e et e e e bt e e et e e r e e et e e ettt ae e 3.75 2.51

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock since it first began operations. In the future,
any declaration and payment of cash dividends will be subject to the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the Company’'s
operating results, financial condition, future growth plans, general business and economic conditions, and other relevant
considerations. Management of the Company expects that. for the foreseeable tuture. profits generated by the Company will
be retained as additional capital to support the Company's operations and that the Company will not pay any cash dividends.

On June 30. 2007 there were 208 holders of record for the Company’s common steck.

During Fiscal 2007, the Company sold 10,000 shares of its common stock for a consideration of $16.000 to an employee of
the Company and its subsidiary upon their exercise of stock options and without registration in reliance upon the exemption
from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,

Performance Graph. The following line graphs compare the cumulative total sharcholder return (the “CTSR™) on the
Company's common stock during the previous five fiscal years with the CTSR over the same measurement peried of the
S&P 500 Index and the S&P Leisure Time (Products) Index. Each line graph assumes that $100 was invested on June 30,
2000, and that any dividends were reinvested in additional shares. We have not paid dividends on the Company’s common
stock during the previous tive fiscal years, so no reinvestment is included in the calculation of the CTSR on the Company’s
common stock,




The following information is being furnished for purposes of Rule 14a-3. It is not deemed to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or to be incorporated by reference into any filing under
the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent
the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such a filing
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Fiscal Years 2003 through 2007

Years ended June 30
Operations Statement Data
2007 2000 2005 2004 2003
Net Sales .o $68,829987 § 79,226,224 $§ 71,182,069 $ 59,296,964 § 52,557,084
Net Income (1088)...covvvvevevceccccen {(5,046,286) 2,404 912 756,212 609,087 879,996
Basic earnings {loss) per share.......... {1.05) .50 A6 a3 19
Weighted average shares
outsStanding ... 4,821,987 4,819,275 4,815,188 4,761.460 4,744,457
Diluted earnings (loss) per share....... (1.05) 49 15 13 18
Diluted weighted average shares
OULSTANAINZ ..o 4,821,987 4,903,949 4,890,124 4,825,179 4,818,806
Balance Sheet Data
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Current asSelS....ovevveveceeeenrernenrens § 13381819 § 17,134,786 § 13,023,588 § 12,460,218 §  7.648,996
Total 8888 ....ooovvviceeceiiecee e 33,416,945 37,860,360 33,034,252 30,621,143 25,929,594
Current liabilities ..., 13,397,212 13,232,828 11,062,016 6,782,584 11,646,433
Long ternitdebt.......o.oooiiiiinn, 15,969,407 15,228,700 15,433,446 17,869,178 9,010,527
Stockholder’s equity (7)o 3,964,602 9,093,699 6,538,790 5,721,726 4,968,

(1) The Company has not paid any cash dividends since its inception




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Certain statements in Management’s Discussion and Analysis are forward-looking as defined in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based on current expectations that are subject to risks and uncertainties.
Actual results may differ materially from expectations as of the date of this filing because of factors discussed in Item 1A.
Risk Factors in this Annual Report.

The Company’s criteria for recording a C.0.D. sale, ar payments prior to shipment sale or sale financed through third-party
floor plan arrangements, are that the boat has been completed and that title has passed to the dealer or to the Government, and
that there is no direct commitment to repurchase the boat or to pay tloor plan interest beyond the sales program terms. As
described more fully below at “Business Environment™, most of the Company’s shipments to dealers were financed through
floor plan arrangements with third-party lenders pursuant to which the Company is subject, for a limited time, to repurchase
boats repossessed by the third-party lenders if the dealer defaults under his credit arrangement. The Company has no
repurchase liability for the balance of shipments. This is the method of sales recognition believed to be in use by most boat
manufacturers.

At June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2003, there were no commitments to dealers to pay the interest on floor plan financed boats in
excess of the time period specified in the Company’s written sales program and there were no direct repurchase agreements.
There were no deferred sales or cost of sales estimated at June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005,

The Company has a contingent liability to repurchase boats where it participates in the floor plan financing made available to
its dealers by third-party finance companies. aggregating to $24.375.708 and $35,212,412 at June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Sales to participating dealers are approved by the respective finance companies. If a participating dealer does
not satisfy its obligation to the lender and the boat is subsequently repossessed by the lender, then the Company may be
required to repurchase the boat.

Business Environment.

Recreational boating is a discretionary expenditure and many purchasing decisions are influenced by interest rates. fuel
prices, insurance rates, weather, general economic factors, and other socioeconomic and environmental factors.

The overall marine industry began to soften in 2005 for small fiberglass (30 feet and less) and the downturn expanded into
the larger fiberglass boat segment in 2006, Demand for sport fishing boats and cruisers weakened in 2007, Attendance at
major boat shows, e.g. Fort Lauderdale, New York, Chicago, Miami. in late 2006 and early 2007 were lower than the prior
year.

Generally, the marine industry reported dealer inventories were higher at the end of the 2006 retail season as sales for the
season had fallen short of expectations. Market analysts were reporting consumer confidence being down and a “lightening”™
of consumer credit. Dealers kept their orders for inventory modest going into the off season and asked boat builders for more
promotions and better financing. The small boat segment sales leveled out somewhat for 2007 afier the decline through 2006
and 25-50 foot fiberglass boats sales were weak in 2007 with the upper end of the cruiser market being the softest of all boat
segments for 2007, reported industry analysts.

Overview

The Company entered Fiscal 2007 with approximately $43 million backlog of orders; however as orders were reconfirmed
with dealers for production some dealers did not have available floor plan credit and some dealers declined to reconfirm
orders as they were cautious about increasing their inventory during the off season. The Company’s sales for the second and
third quarters of Fiscal 2007 in total were 20 percent lower than a total of the comparable quarters of Fiscal 2006.

Overall attendance of the 2007 season boat shows was lower than the prior year. The Company increased its participation
with its dealers at regional and national boat shows with much success. At the Miami International Boat Show in February
2007 the Company recorded approximately $20 million in orders for new boats and boats from dealers” inventory, the highest
in the history of the Company.

During Fiscal 2007 the Company applied “lean manufacturing™ principles and methods to its manufacturing processes,
utilizing the Toyota Production System (TPS) as a model to improve production labor efficiency. Total production
headcount was reduced by 27 percent as a result of improved productivity and reorganizing the work force for alignment with
reduced production levels.
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The Company implemented cost and expense reduction programs in Fiscal 2007 that are expected to reduce overhead costs
by $2.5 million to $3 million annually. These programs, described below, had a positive effect on the results in the fourth
quarter of Fiscal 2007 and will continue to do so in Fiscal 2008.
» Scaled back R&D and Tooling Department and projects
Reduced indirect labor in manufacturing
Reduced administrative salary expenses
Reduced insurance costs
» Reduced administrative expenses
+ Scaled back the offshore racing promotional program and related expenses

The Company’s revenue was $68,829,987 for Fiscal 2007, down 13 percent from revenue of $79,226,224 for Fiscal 2006.
Revenue for the fish boat product line remained flat while the sport boat product line declined by 20 percent and the cruiser
product line declined by 40 percent.

Revenue for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007, ended June 30, 2007, was $19,907,660, as compared to $23,332,063 for the
fourth quarter of Fiscal 2006, a decrease of 14.7 percent. Operating profit for the fourth quarter was $568,004, as compared
to $183,300 operating profit for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2006. The increase in profit was primarily attributable to an
adjustment made to net sales to remedy the over accrual of a newly established year end dealer incentive award. This new
dealer incentive award was over accrued because the rate of accrual, established at the beginning of the year, was based upon
projected annual dealer sales, the actual volume of which was not known until the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007.

Five boats were repurchased in Fiscal 2007, from finance companies under contingent repurchase obligations for a dealer that
failed to meet its obligations to those finance companies, for a total repurchase amount of $809,347. All five boats were re-
sold to other dealers with a total reduction in profit of $51,394. No boats were repurchased in Fiscal 2006 or Fiscal 2005 in
connection with floor plan arrangements. At June 30, 2007, the Company had recorded a $64,124 reserve for losses which
may be reasonably expected to be incurred on boat repurchases in future years. At June 30, 2006 the reserve was $15,459
and at June 30, 2005 the reserve was 575,000,

Qutlook

Analysts are forecasting that boat sales will continue to be down through the first half of calendar 2008, and at this point they
are not forecasting a turn around for the 2008 season.

The Company’s fiscal plan for 2008 is based on the same revenue level as 2007, approximately $68 million. Upgraded and
new boat models will be introduced in all three product lines to boost sales. The Company’s Sales and Marketing personnel
will again take a very active role with the dealers at boat shows and promotional events and increase participation in the retail
sales cycle. The Company has established a subsidiary (see Note 14) to sell Fountain boats at retail in a territory that can be
serviced from the Company’s location and to provide retails sales support and training for its dealers.

Further cost reduction programs are underway that will have positive effect on results for Fiscal 2008:
» Reduction of advertising expenses
» Reduction of sales promotional expenses
¢ Reduction of offshore racing promotion expenses
s Reduction in manufacturing operating costs

Results of Operations.

Net sales for Fiscal 2007 were $68,829,987, down 13 percent as compared to net sales of $79,226,224 for Fiscal 2006. The
decrease in net sales is a result of the general decline in the marine industry that affected the segments of the market in which
the Company’s boats are sold. Net sales of the Express Cruiser product line also suffered due to issues with the engines
which were installed early during Fiscal 2007, The Company has since migrated to installing engines from a different
manufacturer in our Express Cruisers.




Net Sales by product line for the Fiscal years of 2007, 2006 and 2005 are:

Fiscal 2007 % of Fiscal 2006 Ya of Fiscal 2005 %a of
Net Sales Sales Net Sales Sales Net Sales Sales
Product Line
Sportboats ..o $ 28,055276 40% §  31,799.204 40% § 33,819,857 47%
Express cruisers ............oooe.... 9,399,064 14% 15.760.240 20% 13,395,691 19%
Sport fishing boats ............... 29,629 864 43% 20,194,785 37% 21,123,893 30%
Service, parts, sportswear ..... 1,745,783 3% 2,471,995 3% 2,842,627 4%
Net sales total .............. $ 68,829.987 S 79226224 $ 71,182,068

Gross profit on sales for Fiscal 2007 was $9,108,088, 13.2 percent of net sales, as compared to $13,073.800, 16.5% of net
sales, for Fiscal 2006. Gross profit for Fiscal 2005 was $10,910,563, 15.3% of net sales. The decrease of 3.3 percentage
points from 2006 to 2007 was primarily attributable to production inefficiencies due to lower production volumes, reduced
tixed cost absorption from production cuts and promotional program pricing in the first half of the year. The increase in
gross margin from 2005 to 2006 was the result of improvements in productivity and labor efficiency.

Operating loss was ($2.745,878) for Fiscal 2007, as compared to a profit of $2,275,355 in 2006 and $1,766,347 in Fiscal
2005. Operating profit for Fiscal 2007 was affected by the circumstances outlined above in the gross margin discussion of
this report and increased selling expenses, detailed below.

Fiscal 2007 net loss for the Company was ($5,046,286) or ($1.05) per share, of which ($1,283,728) or ($.27) per share was a
tax adjustment. This compares to a net income of $2,404.912 or $.50 per share for Fiscal 2006 and net income of $756,212 or
$.16 per share for Fiscal 2005. The tax adjustment for Fiscal 2007 arose from the establishment of a valuation allowance to
completely offset the Company’s Deferred Tax Assets (sce Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, appearing on
page 32 of this report).

Depreciation expense was $2,313,807 for Fiscal 2007, $2,020.860 for Fiscal 2006, and $1,840,168 for Fiscal 2005.

Overall selling and general and administrative expense for Fiscal 2007 was $11.853,966, a $1,055,520 increase from
$10.798,445 in Fiscal 2006.

Selling expenses were $8,040,083 for Fiscal 2007, $6,765.871 for Fiscal 2006 and $5,726,283 for Fiscal 2005. The increase
in selling expense was primarily from an increase in advertising expenses, inctuding an expanded international advertising
program, increased salaries and commissions and increased expenses for the Company’s support of offshore racing and
fishing tournament programs.

Major selling expenses for the past three fiscal years were as follows:

2007 2006 2605

FIShiNg .o 3 548,693 § 444328 § 201,857
RACIIIE ettt 1,776,198 1,474.270 1,011,829
AQVEITISINE 1ot 2,013,740 1.412,435 1,264,368
Salaries & COMMISSIONS .......coovieeii oo eete e ete et 1,345,709 1,098.662 1,043,363
Boat ShOWS.....ooo s 691,633 526,381 563,810
Dealer SUPPOTL ..o 456,802 350,138 294,092
Other Selling eXPenSes ... it eee e 1,207,308 1,259,657 1,346,964

TORAL e s $  B040,083 § 6765871 § 5726283

General and administrative expenses include the executive, finance, human resources, information technology, legal and
administrative operating expenses of the Company. These expenses were $3,813,883 for Fiscal 2007, $4,032.574 for Fiscal
2006, and $3,417,933 for Fiscal 2005. The decrease in administrative expenses for 2007 was primarily attributable to
reduced legal expenses. Increased administrative expenses for 2006 were generally attributable to expenses related to the
restatement of 2004 and 2005 financial statements, legal expenses related to breach of warranty suits, of which the more
costly suits have been settled, and consulting services for preparation of internal contrels and procedures 1o comply with
Sarbanes-Oxley Act: Section 404, all of which were non-recurring expenses.

Interest expense net of amounts capitalized was $966,784 for Fiscal 2007. $1,132,584 for Fiscal 2006, and $1.011,860 for
Fiscal 2005. Interest expense decreased in Fiscal 2007 due to Fiscal 2006 having an expense of $229,801 of capitalized loan
costs trom the previous Bank of America loan when it was refinanced by the new $16,500,000 loan from Regions Bank, The
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increase in interest expenses from Fiscal 2005 to Fiscal 2006 was also caused primarily due to the write-off of $229,801
unamortized loan expenses.

Current tax provision is $1,283,728 for the year ending June 30, 2007, ($1,283,746) for the year ending June 30, 2006, and
($21,232) for the year ended June 30, 2005. The current tax provision of $0 for Fiscal 2007 is the natural consequence of the
net loss incurred by the Company. Deferred tax (benefit)/provision is (§1,417,122) for the year ended June 30, 2007,
$460,258 for the year ended June 30, 2006 and $355,590 for the year ended 20035, Deferred taxes arise from temporary
differences between financial and income tax reporting regarding the recognition of certain items.

As of June 30, 2007 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $2,700,850 that were fully offset by a valuation allowance
because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there continued to be doubt as to whether those deferred tax
assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally relate to the potential future
benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been generated during the years ended June 30, 2002 and
June 30, 2007 when the Company generated substantial net losses. During the year ended June 30, 2007 the Company
performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax assets. The evaluation resulted in the application of a valuation
allowance.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2007 of approximately $8,208,000 and
$7,449,000, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2027. The ultimate realization of the benefits from the
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the Company’s future earnings, the future tax laws in effect, and other unknown
factors; all of which are uncertain. In recent years the Company elected to provide for a tax asset valuation allowance of
$2,700,850 at June 30, 2007, $0 at June 30, 2006 and $1,709,951 at June 30, 2005.

Liquidity and Financial Resources.

As disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the cash balance decreased by $2,095,169 during the
Fiscal Year ended june 30, 2007. By comparison, during the previous Fiscal Year the cash balance increased $461,327.

Cash used by operations was $2,063,3135 in Fiscal 2007 and resulted primarily from:
®  The net loss of $5,046,286 incurred, adjusted for non-cash provisions, including depreciation expense of $2,313,807
and deferred taxes of $1,283.728. The net loss is the most significant use of cash and is discussed elsewhere in this
document.
¢ Reductions in Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Accrued Dealer Incentives represent a use of cash in the

amount of $1,200,326. This contraction in current liabilities is consistent with the reduction in boats manufactured
and sold during Fiscal 2007

®  Reductions in the working capital accounts of Accounts Receivable, Inventories and Prepaid Expenses provided
$123,883. Contraction in working capital accounts is consistent with the reductions in manufacturing and sales
activity during Fiscal 2007,

e  Customer Deposits provided $488,079, indicating that we are collecting larger deposits when orders are placed.

Cash required for Investing activities during Fiscal 2007 was $1,635,200. As is typically the case, the largest investment
made was in creation of plugs and moids. Plugs are wooden forms constructed for the purpose of creating molds. Molds are
used to replicate hulls, decks and various other fiberglass parts for our boats. $1,045,057 was invested in plugs and molds
during Fiscal 2007. Another $593,518 was spent on other property, plant and equipment.

Financing activities provided $1,603,346 during Fiscal 2007.

* Loans under the “Credit Facility” (See Note 5, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) provided
$799,333, net of repayments.

e  The Company borrowed $1,500,000 of the Cash Surrender Value of the Key Man Life Insurance Policies it owns on
the life of the Company” founder, Chairman and CEQ.

o  The Company repaid $711,987 of the principal of the “Loan” as per the terms of that loan (see Note 3, in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements).

s Anemployee of The Company purchased shares of common stock providing $16,000 of cash.

Management is of the opinion that cash flows will be sufficient to satisfy its current and future liquidity demands because
Management has realigned operating costs and expenses for the reduced level of production and returned the Company to
profitability in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007 and is expecting to continue to operate profitably through Fiscal 2008,
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Effects of Inflation.

The Company has not been materially affected by the inflation of recent years, Materials that are petroleum-based (e.g. resin,
gel coat. foam) have been subject to price increases. and fuel surcharges have increased freight costs. The Company has been
able to minimize the effect of material price increases by negotiating favorable purchase agreements with suppliers, using
alternative, less costly materials, by finding less costly sources for materials and increasing selling prices of its products to
recover the cost increases.

The Company’s products are targeted at the segment of the powerboat market where retail purchasers are generally less
significantly affected by price or other economic conditions. Consequently, management believes that the impact of inflation
on sales and the results of operations will not be material.

Contractual Obligations.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s contractual cash obligations as of June 30, 2007

Payvments due by period

Less than Over
Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years S years
(In thousands}
Contractual Obligations:

Long-term debt. including current maturities................. § 16728 8§ 759 % 1673 S 127796 & 1,300
[nterest payments on fong-term debt ... 2930 960 1,765 205 —
Operating lease obligations ..., 380 106 190 90 —
Total contractual obligations ..., $ 20,044 § 1825 § 3628 5 13,091 § 1.500

The Company has an agreement with Mercury Marine, a division of Brunswick Corporation. that the Company will purchase
from Mercury all of the Company’s requirements for marine engines and other power components that Mercury
manufactures. The term of this agreement is through June 30, 2012

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

Guarantees. Based on historical experience and current facts and circumstances. and in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees. Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others — An Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and
107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” the Company has reserves to cover potential losses associated with
guarantees and repurchase obligations. Historical cash requirements and losses associated with these obligations have not
been significant. See Note 8, Commitments and Contingencies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for a
description of these arrangements.

Environmental Regulation.

‘The Company does not believe that compliance with federal, state. and local environmental laws will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s competitive position.

Critical Accounting Policies.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that aftect the amount of reported assets and
ltabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues
and expenses during the periods reported. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The Company discussed the
development and selection of the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and
believes the following are the most critical accounting policies that could have an effect on the Company’s reported results.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Incentives. The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from the sale of boats. Revenue is
recognized in accordance with the contracted terms of the sale. upon completion and legal title and ail other incidents of
ownership have passed to dealers or the Government, and the ability to collect is assured. The Company offers discounts and
sales incentives. The estimated liability for sales incentives is recorded at the later of the time of program communication (o
the customer or at the time of sale in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 01-9, “Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of a Vendor's Products}” and EITF No. 00-22,
“Accounting for Points and Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products
or Services to be Delivered in the Future.” The liability is estimated based on the costs for the incentive program, the planned
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duration of the program and historical experience. If actual costs are different from estimated costs, the recorded value of the
liability would be adjusted.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. The Company records an allowance for uncollectible trade receivables based upon
currently known bad debt risks and provides reserves based on past loss history, customer payment practices and economic
conditions. Actual collection experience may differ from the current estimate of reserves. Changes to the allowance for
doubtful accounts may be required if a future event or other circumstance results in a change in the estimate of the ultimate
ability to collect a specific account or invoice.

Reserve for Obsolete Inventories. The Company records a reserve for obselete inventories in order to ensure inventories are
carried at the lower of cost or fair market value. Fair market value can be affected by assumptions about market demand and
conditions, historical usage rates, model changes and new product introductions. If model changes or new product
introductions create more or less than favorable market conditions, the reserve for obsolete inventories may need to be
adjusted. Refer to Note 1, Nature of the Business and Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion on the basis of accounting for inventories.

Warranty Reserves. The Company records a liability for standard product warranties. The liability is recorded using historical
warranty experience to estimate projected warranty costs. If necessary, the Company adjusts its liability for specific warranty
matters when they become known and are reasonably estimable. The Company’s warranty reserves are affected by product
failure rates and material usage and labor costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If these estimated costs differ from
actual product failure rates, and actual material usage and labor costs, a revision to the warranty reserve would be required.

Income Taxes. Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax effects of temporary differences between financial and income
tax reporting using tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The Company estimates
its probable tax obligations based on historical experience and current tax laws and litigation. The judgments made at any
point in time may change based on the outcome of tax audits and settlements of tax litigation, as well as changes due to new
tax laws and regulations and the Company’s interpretations of those laws and regulations. These factors may cause the tax
rate for the Company to increase or decrease. As of June 30, 2007 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $2,700,850
that were fully offset by a valuation allowance because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there continued
to be doubt as to whether those deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax
assets principally related to the potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been
generated during the years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2007 when the Company generated substantial net losses.
During the year ended June 30, 2007 the Company performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax assets. The
evaluation resulted in the application of a valuation allowance.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2007 of approximately $8,208,000 and
$7,449,000, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2027.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of “Safe Harbor” Under the Private Securities Reform Act of 1995.

Certain statements in this Annual Report are forward-looking as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, Forward-looking statements in this Annuai Report may include words such as “expect”, “anticipate”, “believe”,
“may”, “should”, “could” or “estimate”. These statements involve certain risks and uncertainties that may cause actual
results to differ materially from expectations as of the date of this filing. These risks include, but are not limited to, those set

forth under Item 1A — Risk Factors.

Caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on the Company’s forward-looking statements, which represent the
Company’s views only as of the date this report is filed. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly or revise
any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates. The Company enters into hedging transactions to
mitigate this risk in accordance with guidelines established by the Company’s management. A description of the Company’s
interest rate hedging activities is presented in Note 1. to the consolidated financial statements. The Company does not use
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company uses an interest rate swap agreement to mitigate the effect that changes in interest rates have on the fair market
value of the Company’s debt and to lower the Company’s borrowing costs on long term debt. The Company’s net exposure
1o interest rate risk is primarily attributable to the term loan with Regions Bank, which bears interest at a floating-rate.
Interest rate risk management is accomplished through the use of a floating-to-fixed interest rate swap, Both the loan and the
swap are benchmarked to short-term money market interest rates.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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DIXON HUGHES
Certified Public Accountants and Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.
Washington, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and subsidiary as of
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity. cash flows and the
schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2007. These
consolidated financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an optnion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
eftectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
stalement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and subsidiary at June 30, 2007 and 2006 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules,
when considered in relation to the 2005, 2006 and 2007 basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

Greenville, North Carolina
September 26, 2007




FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006
ASSETS
2007 2006
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIETIES ....ccoiiiiiiiir et $ 2379383 § 4,474,552
Accounts receivable, TEL ... 3,688,986 3,405,868
RN (10 1= SO P AU URRU PRSI 6,645,213 6,959,188
Prepaid @XPENSES ..o e e 668,237 849,160
DIefErTed tAX AS5EES L ittt et ee et e e e et e et e ettt e e e e tte s s st e e e eentesearneeean —_— 1,446,018
TOtAl CUITEIE ASSEIS 1oiviniei i cecte e ie e e serb e e s srtnae s sarrerarsnrr e e snnrnessabneeeas 13,381,819 17,134,786
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ..ot nie e e sesnesrnesrnvsreseneeene e 49,533,443 47,898,410
Less: Accumulated depreciation ...........oooooveoiiieieieeee ettt (33,104,217) (30,790,537)
16,429,226 17,107,873
CASH SURRENDER VALUE LIFE INSURANCE, NET ....ociivieiieeeieeeeceieeiieeie e 2,951,010 2,552,682
O T HE R A S S E T S e et et e ettt et e e e e et et et et aaeaeasastnteaaaaansse et satseesmeneesaaennas 654,890 1,065,019
O T AL ASSET S ittt e st s et e st e ta e stb e sraenrannreas $ 33416945 £ 37,860,360
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS™ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt. ... e $ 759,290 § 711,984
NOLE PAYADIE. oo e 799,333
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ... bbb 2,846,303 3.861,061
ACCTHEU EXPOIISES oot ittt et e et s e s e en e eeeese e s e e s ee b e are s en e 1,092,908 1,253,714
DALY TNCENTIVES ..o eeeeeeeees et et et e st e e eae e e eeteeeaneeenbeaetn s e b be e s baasens 6,342,467 6,367,229
CUSLOMIET QEPOSIIS weviiiiiietiiiiiitiestie e erseree st e vaeeresesseaneesesetesesesaseaassaassaaseinssessaeseesbnesss 879,102 391,024
Allowance for BOAL TEPUICHASES ... ovvvrvosrieerea e eeeet e e eieseeeiee e aneeeeasee e eeaesee e nmeniees 64,124 15,459
WRAITANLY TESETVE .ooiiiiiiii et s s 041,928 632,357
Total Current LIabilIties .........ccooooe it te e srassaee s 13,725,455 13,232,828
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES .....ooooiiiiiiiieeiei s sie s s se e s 4,828 —
LONG-TERM DEBT, l€88 CUITENT POIION . c..ciiiitiiiieiiiicrirerene e s 15,969,407 15,228,700
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY oottt cae e e e e snn s snbesr e s s e e 80,896 305,133
TOtAl LIABIHIIES. ...ooceoooeeee et 29,780,586 28,760,601
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES [NOTE 8]
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 4,844,275 shares
issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2007 and 4,834,275 as of June 30, 2006....... 48,442 48,342
Additional paid-in capital ... e 10,574,753 10,558,853
Accumulated defiCit ... e, (7,005,001) (1.630,472)
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 15,000 Shares. ..o, (110,748) (110,748)
Accumulated other comprehensive income from interest rate SWap .......oococcvveeicneecnn, 128,913 227,724
Total Stockholders” EqQUity ..o, 3,636,359 9,093,699
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUity .....oocoovvvviieeiii $ 33416945 § 37,860,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007, 2005 AND 2005

2007 2006 2005

NET SALES ettt $ 68829987 § 79226224 § 71,182,069

COST OF SALES. ..o st 59,721,899 66,152,424 60,271,506

Gross Proflt. e e 9,108,088 13,073,800 10,910,563

EXPENSES

Selling EXPENSE ..o oo ettt anen 8.040.083 6,765,871 5,726,283

General and AdMINISIALVE ......cocoooo it 3,813,883 4,032,574 3,417,933

TOtAl EXPEISE ..ottt e e ettt et 11,853,966 10,798,445 9,144.216

OPERATING (LOSSY INCOME ..o (2,745,878) 2,275,355 1,766,347

Other (Income) EXPeNSe ...ttt 49 855 9,944 23,507

TSt P IS B ettt 966,784 1,132,584 1,011,860

{Gain) loss on disposal 0f ASSEIS ....o..iiiiiie et 41 11,661 (4,000)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE ... 1,016,680 1,154,189 1,031,367

(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ..., (3,762,558} 1,121,166 734,980

TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT).....cciiiiiiiiiiiine e 1,283,728 (1,283,746) (21,232}
NET(LOSSYINCOME L. $ (5.046,286) § 2,404912 756,212

BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE. ..., $ (1.05) % 50 d6

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QOUTSTANDING ..o, 4,821,987 4,819,275 4,815,188

DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE ............ccooii, $ (1.05) & 49 A5

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QUTSTANDING .................. 4,821,987 4,903,949 4,890,124

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these conselidated financial statements.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

2007

2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NEt (L0SS) INCOME.ciiiiiiiciiii e st s st rre s e s nessens $

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

(5.046,286) S

2404912 8 756,212

Inventory valuation adjuStment ...........coovev i e 68,071 42,060 22,682
Depreciation BXPENSE. ....ccocvvv ettt 2,313,807 2,020,860 1,840,168
Net increase in cash surrender value of life insurance...........ccoeeiivrvivnens (398,328 (373,064) (598,301)
Deferred loan costs expensed ... — 229,801 —
Gain on termination of interest rate SWapP......coceev e cereeeeeee e, — (84,524) —
(Gain) loss on disposal of @qUIPMENT ....coovviiiiiiii e 41 11,661 {4,000)
Bad debt @XPense .......oooiiiirc e 19,825 83,546 168,634
Amortization of deferred [0an COSES oo 36,002 43,323 79,932
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)......coocooveiiiiinccrvccieicrcreee 1,283,728 {1,283,746) —
Change in assets and labilities: ..o
Accounts receivable ... (302,943 (1,294,057) 1,143,255
TIIVEILOTIES 1. ovevevveriereeeeneeies ettt ettt eas et es b b e essene s ass s ssassaneans 245,904 {528,231) {(1,842,297)
Prepaid @XPEINSES ......coiiirieiii e e s 180,922 (507,171) 87,068
L0 11 (T g 11T (AR UO PSP SOTPU 213,369 (212,617) (47,393)
Accounts pavable ... (1,014,758) 16,959 1,001,236
ACCTUE CXPEIIEES . eiiiiiviiereet it ere e ereseee e st ae st e e er e (160,806) 174,156 4,853
DAl eT ITIC BT VES . oottt et e s s bbb e (24,762) 2,664,491 2499216
CUSLOMET AEPOSITS ...ttt ettt e 488,078 (468,853) 773,802
WV ATTANEY TESEIVE ...t veiverersrrrererrrnreesreeeameeeseeaameeaenesantessbe e s rasbeenrns (18,672) (107,643) 30,000
Allowance for boat repurchases..........occveevevrnvnnnnci e, 48,665 (59,541) —
Other long-term Habilities ..., 4,828 — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities ... ioevininiinceiinieenn, (2.063,315) 2,772,320 5,915,467
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds front sale of @qUIPMENT ... 3,375 3,883 4,000
Investment in molds and related plugs ..o (1,045,057) (1,092,994) (1.641,238)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ... (593,518) (872,897) (1,463,523)
Maturity of certificate of deposit. ..o — — 255,197
Net Cash Used by Investing ACtIVITIES ......oocoiiieiiniiiis e, {1,635,200) {1,962,008) (2,845,564)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable..........ooooiioi 4,045,863 — -—
Proceeds from long term debt ..o 1,500,000 16,545,878 —
Paymenits of notes payable....... (3,246,530) — —
Payments of long term debl........c.. (711,987) (16,799,378) (2,441,040)
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swap . ......coocooiiiiiieiie e — 84,524 —
Payments of deferred 10an COSIS.......cooiiiiiiiiii e — (180,009) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ... 16,000 — 41,668
Payments on long term capital Iease .........ooooooiiioiniii e — (24,367)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing ACtivities ......ccoovvviiiiiiiin 1,603,346 (348,985) (2,423,739)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ... (2,095,169} 461,327 646,164
Beginning cash and cash equivalents balance ..o 4,474,552 4,013,225 3,367,061
Ending cash and cash equivalents balance ... $ 2379383 § 4474552 § 4,013,225

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSHMARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED{
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007, 2006 AND 2045

2007 2006 2005
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the period fori..........ocoooveiii
Interest to unrefated parties, net of amounts capitalized............... § 1,340969 §$ 1,417874 $ 1,123,293
Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Unrealized gain (10ss) 0n interest rale SWap...........ooveeceeinsieresesernne s $ (98.811) £ 149997 § 19,184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 340, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

Note 1. Nature of the Business and Significant Accounting Policies.

Nature of the Business: Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Company) manufacture high-
performance sport boats, sport cruisers, sport fishing boats, and custom oftshore racing boats. These boats are sold
worldwide to a network of 32 domestic and 24 international dealers. The Company’s offices and manufacturing
facilities are located in Washington, North Carolina, and the Company has been in business since 1979. The Company
employs 328 people.

Principles of Consolidation; The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fountain Powerboat
Industries, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Fountain Powerboats, Inc. All significant inter-company accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year: The Company’s fiscal year-end is June 30th, which is its natural business year-end.

Accounting Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reperted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimated by management. These estimates affect:

= The reported amounts of assets and liabilities,

= The disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and

*  The reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Estimates in these consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to:

+  Allowances for doubtful accounts;

» Inventory obsolescence reserves;

+  Reserves for dealer incentives and allowances;

»  Warranty related reserves:

*  Losses on litigation and other contingencies;

»  Environmental liability reserves;

+ Insurance reserves:

* Income tax reserves.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2007 and 2006,
the Company had $2.379,383 and $4.474,552 respectively, held in cash.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts Receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment
within 7 days from the invoice date for boat sales and within 30 days for all other sales. The carrying amount of
accounts receivable is reduced by an allowance that reflects management’s best estimate of the amounts that will not be
collected, Management reviews each accounts receivable balance that exceeds 90 days from the invoice date and based
on an assessment of the current creditworthiness, estimates the portion, if any, of the balance that will not be collected.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the firsi-in, first-out method
(See Note 3). The Company records a reserve for obsolete inventories in order to ensure inventories are carried at the
lower of cost or fair market value, Fair market value can be affected by assumptions about market demand and
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conditions, historical usage rates, model changes and new product introductions. If model changes or new product
introductions create more or less than favorable market conditions, the reserve for obsolete inventories may need to be
adjusted.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation: Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation

on property, plant, and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method and is based upon the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The Company continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate
the remaining estimated useful lives of its long-lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such
assets may not be recoverable. (See Note 4)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Management estimates of the carrying value of financial instruments on the
consolidated financial statements approximate fair values. The carrying values of the Company’s short term financial
instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and debt approximate their fair values because
of the short maturity of these instruments and the variability of the associated interest rates.

Dealer Incentive Accruals: The Company has established sales programs to pay service and/or other awards to dealers
for boat deliveries into their market territory for which they will perform service or based upon sales of boats from their
locations. These programs are based in part on the model of the boat sold, a factor for the dealer’s service performance
rating, the dollar value of the sale and other factors, including total sales volume to dealers. The Company has accrued
dealer incentives of $6,342,467 and $6,367,229 at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Dealer incentive accruals are
recorded as a reduction to net sales. These amounts also include an accrual for dealer interest as discussed in Note 8,
“Commitments and Contingencies”.

Allowance for Boat Repurchases: The Company provides an allowance for boats financed by dealers under floor plan
finance arrangements that may be repurchased from finance companies under certain circumstances where the
Company has a repurchase agreement with the lender. The amount of the allowance is determined based upon the
current financial status of the Company’s dealers. The Company has accrued allowance for boat repurchases of
564,124 and $15,459 at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 respectively.

Revenue Recognition: The Company generally sells boats only to authorized dealers and to the U.S. Government. A
sale i1s recorded when legal title and all other incidents of ownership have passed to the dealer or to the Government.
Prior to the sale to the dealer or the Government, the Company must have received a signed Sales Order
Acknowledgement from the dealer or the Government specifying the terms of the sale, including the sales price. All
boat sales are Cash on Delivery basis, or with prior approval of the buyer’s third party commercial lender, thus assuring
the ability to collect.

In addition to other dealer incentives, the Company offers a sales incentive plan whereby floor plan interest is paid by
the Company up to six months (180 days) or until the boat is sold by the dealer. Each month the Company calculates
an amount equal to the estimated potential floor plan interest payment for the remainder of the 180 day period
beginning on the invoice date for each boat still in floor plan inventory. The sum of these individual calculations is
accrued as a liability and recorded as a selling expense. (See Note 8) As the number of boats and the time remaining in
the free floor plan interest period varies from month to month, the variation is reflected in floor plan interest expense.

Income Taxes: The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™ (See Note 7).

Advertising Cost: Cost incurred in connection with advertising and promotion of the Company’s products is expensed
as incurred. Such costs amounted to $2,013,740, $1,412,435 and $1,264,368 for the years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Earnings Per Share: The Company accounts for earnings per share in accordance with the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128 “Earnings Per Share,” which requires the Company to present basic and diluted
earnings per share. The computation of basic earning per share is based on the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the periods presented. The computation of diluted earnings per shares is based on the weighted
average number of outstanding common shares during the year plus, when their effect is dilutive, additional shares
assuming the exercise of certain vested and non-vested stock options and warrants, reduced by the number of shares
which could be purchased from the proceeds (See Note 12).

Warranties: The Company warrants the entire deck and hull, including its supporting bulkhead and stringer system,
against defects in materials and workmanship for a period of six years. The Company has accrued a reserve for these
anticipated future warranty costs,
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Reclassifications: The consolidated financial statements and notes for vears prior to the year ended June 30, 2007 have
been reclassified to conform with headings and classifications used in the June 30, 2007 financial statements. The
reclassifications had no effect on net income or shareholder’s equity as previously reported.

Cash Surrender Value of life insurance policies: - At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company owns six life insurance
policies on Reginald M. Fountain, Jr., the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for a total ot $8,091,411
and $7,780,253 in coverage and $2,951,010 and $2,552,682 cash value, respectively. At June 30, 2007 the Company
has borrowed $1,500.000 against the policies, which is shown in long term debt on the consolidated balance sheet. At
June 30, 2006, the Company had no outstanding loans against the policies.

Research and Development: The Company expenses the costs of research and development for new products and
components as the costs are incurred. Research and development costs are included in the cost of sales and amounted to
$757,186 for Fiscal 2007, $780,520 for Fiscal 2006, and $786,129 for Fiscal 2005.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company uses derivative financial instruments for the purpose of reducing its
exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest rates. While these hedging instruments are subject to fluctuations in value,
such fluctuations are generally offset by the value of the underlying exposures being hedged. The Company has
determined that the hedges’ ineffectiveness is not material and accounts for these derivative financial instruments as an
effective cash flow hedge under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The Company is not a party to leveraged derivatives
and does not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The Company utilizes an interest rate swap agreement to hedge exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates. Under
United States GAAP, an interest rate swap agreement is considered a derivative financial instrument. Due to the nature
of the derivative and the intended use by the Company, the derivative qualifies as a Cash Flow Hedge. As such, SFAS
Na. 133 requires that the value of the derivative be “marked-to-market”™ periodically and any change in the market
value of the swap be reflected in the financial statements of the Company. The market value of the derivative is
calculated as of the last day of the period and any change since the end of the previous period is reflected, net of tax, in
an adjustment to Stockholders’ Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Recently Enacted Accounting Standards:

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 37 (SFAS No. 154). SFAS No. 154 replaces APB Opinion No, 20,
“Accounting Changes™ (Opinion 20), and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements,” changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle.
Opinion 20 previousty required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by including in net
income of the period of the change the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. SFAS No. 154
requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle. SFAS

No. 154 defines retrospective application as the application of a different accounting principle to prior accounting
periods as if that principle had always been used or as the adjustment of previously issued financial statements to
reflect a change in the reporting entity. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in depreciation, amortization, or
depletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate effected by a
change in accounting principle. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 154 during the fiscal year beginning July 1,
2006, The adoption of SFAS No. 154 did not significantly impact our conselidated financial statements,

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 135, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an
amendment of FASB statements No. 133 and 1407 (SFAS 155). SFAS No. 155 allows financial instruments that have
embedded derivatives 1o be accounted for as a whole (eliminating the need to bifurcate the derivative from its host) as
long as the entire instrument is valued on a fair value basis. The statement also resolves and clarifies other specific
SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No. 140 related issues. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or
issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. We will be required to
adopt SFAS No. 155 on July 1, 2007 and do not expect that it will have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109”7 (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
by prescribing a two-step method of first, evaluating whether a tax position has met a more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold. and second, measuring that tax position to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 provides guidance on the presentation of such positions within a classified statement of financial
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position as well as on derecognition, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
FIN 48 is effective for the Company beginning July 1, 2007. Compliance is not expected to significantly impact our
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements™ (SFAS 157). FAS 157 enhances existing guidance for measuring assets and liabilities using fair value.
Prior to the issuance of FAS 157, guidance for applying fair value was incorporated in several accounting
pronouncements. FAS 157 provides a single definition of fair value, together with a framework for measuring it, and
requires additional disclosure about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. FAS 157 also emphasizes
that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy
with the highest priority being quoted prices in active markets. Under FAS 157, fair value measurements are disclosed
by level within that hierarchy. While FAS 157 does not add any new fair value measurements, it does change current
practice. Changes to practice include: (1) a requirement for an entity to include its own credit standing in the
measurement of its liabilities; (2) a modification of the transaction price presumption; (3) a prohibition on the use of
block discounts when valuing large blocks of securities for broker-dealers and investment companies; and (4) a
requirement to adjust the value of restricted stock for the effect of the restriction even if the restriction lapses within
one year. FAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has not determined the impact of adopting FAS 157 on its
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No, 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities”, (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 allows entities to measure financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected must be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value
opticn can be applied instrument by instrument, however the election is irrevocable. SFAS No. 139 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the statement to have an effect on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (“SAB 108”), “Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB 108 was issued in
order to eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies quantify financial statement
misstatements. Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized methods for quantifying the effects of financial
statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method and the “iron curtain™ method. The roll-over method focuses
primarily on the impact of a misstatement on the Income statement—including the reversing effect of prior year
misstatements—but its use can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron curtain
method focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing
effects of prior year’s errors on the income statement. We have previously used the roll-over method for quantifying
identified financial statement misstatements.

SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects
of the misstatements on each of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement
disclosures. This model is commonly referred to as a “dual approach” because it requires quantification of errors under
both the iron curtain and the roll-over methods. SAB 108 permits public companies to initially apply its provisions
either by (i) restating prior financial statements as if the “dual approach” had always been applied or (ii) recording the
cumulative effect of initially applying the “dual approach” as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and
liabilities as of July I, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings.




We adopted SAB 108 during the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and elected to use the cumulative effect transition
method in connection with the preparation of our financial statements. The following table summarizes the effects of
applying the guidance in SAB 108:

Period in which the misstatement originated (1)

Cumulative Adjustment
Prior to July 1, Year ended Year ended Recorded as of
2004 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2006
Warranty reserve adjustment (2) .........ococoooeeeennn. $ 389,244 $ (91,526) % 30,525 $ 328243
Impact on net income (10ss) (3) ..o, $ (389.244) 3§ 91,5326 % (30,525)
Accumulated deficit (4) ..o § (328,243)

(1) The Company quantified these errors under the roll-over method and concluded that they were immaterial both
individually and in the aggregate.

(2)  The Company’s calculation of warranty reserve, and the resulting warranty expense, had inappropriately always
excluded boats remaining in dealer inventory. As a result of this error, our warranty reserve liability and warranty
€xpense was understated by $389,244 in fiscal years beginning prior to July I, 2004, overstated by $91,526 in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005 and understated by $30,525 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Due to our assessment as
to the recoverability of deferred tax assets, we have determined that there is no related tax impact resulting from these
understatements.

{3)  Represents the net over/{under)statement of net income for the indicated periods resulting from these misstatements.

(4)  Represents the net reduction to retained earnings recorded as of July 1, 2006 to record the initial application of SAB
108.

In 2006 the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF Issue 06-4 “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefits Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” requires the recognition of a
liability related to the postretirement benefits covered by an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement. The
employer {who is also the policyholder} has a liability for the benefit it is providing to its employee. As such, if the
policyholder has agreed to maintain the insurance policy in force for the employee’s benefit during his or her retirement,
then the liability recognized during the employee’s active service period should be based on the future cost of insurance
to be incurred during the employee’s retirement. Alternatively, if the policyholder has agreed to provide the employee
with a death benefit, then the liability for the future death benefit should be recognized by following the guidance in
Statement 106 or Opinion 12, as appropriate. This issue is applicable for interim or annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that this pronouncement will have on the
consolidated financial statements,

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the EITF relating to EITF 06-10, “Accounting for
Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.” EITF 06-10 established that an employer should
recognize a liability for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral assignment split-doilar life insurance
arrangement in accordance with either SFAS No. 106 or APB No. 12 if the employer has agreed to maintain a life
msurance policy during the employee's retirement or provide the employee with a death benefit based on the substantive
arrangement with the employee. EITF 06-10 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007 and is not
expected to have a material affect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - The Company reports as comprehensive income changes in stockholders’ equity
during the year from sources other than shareholders. Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to all components
(revenues, expenses, gains, and losses) of comprehensive income (loss) that are excluded from net income {loss). The
Company’s only component of other comprehensive income {loss) is unrealized gains and losses related to interest rate
swap agreements. For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s other comprehensive income
(loss) was (398,811), $149,997, and $19,184, respectively, resulting in total comprehensive income (loss) of
($5,145,097), $2,554,909, and $775,396 respectively for those years.
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Stock Based Compensation - The Company has stock incentive plans that provide for stock-based employee
compensation, including the granting of stock options, to certatn key employees and other individuals. The plans are
more fully described in Note 6. Prior to the year ended June 30, 2006 the Company accounted for stock options issued
to employee, officers and directors under the stock incentive plan in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™, and related Interpretations. Under this
method, compensation expense is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock
exceeded the exercise price. Under the Company’s stock incentive plan, stock options are granted at exercise prices that
equal or exceed the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, Therefore, no compensation
expense related to stock options is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended June 30,
2005.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS

No. 123(R})). SFAS No. [23(R} establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges
its equity instruments for goods and services. The Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which
an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the fair value
of such equity instruments be recognized as an expense in the historical financial statements as services are performed.
Prior to SFAS No. 123(R). only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for the fiscal year that begins after June 135, 2005. Accordingly, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R)
on July 1, 2005 and it had no eftect on net income for Fiscal 2007 or 2006 because all outstanding options vested fully
prior to July 1, 2005.

Had compensation cost for stock options issued to employees under the Company’s stock opticn plans and agreements
been determined based on the fair value at the grant date for awards prior to July 1, 2005 consistent with the provisions
of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net earnings before taxes and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated below:

2005
Net Income
A TEPOTIEA ...ocviie et r st e e et e e e e e e e e eme e e et et e emee e et e e eanee e e e e anta 1 e e e it e eaeeras $ 756,212
Less: total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair market value method for
AL AWALAS, NBL OF TAX ittt ittt et e e e e e e e et e eeae e e e ssaareesrsreesrnres 5,083
|36 (oI £y o1 TORTT TSR 751,129
Basic net income per share
ASTEPOIEA ..ot e e e e enene A6
Pro fOMIIA. oo et en e eeennan 16
Diluted net income per share
AS TEPOTIE ..o e r e et ettt et et s A5
Pro fOrmIa.. .ottt bbb bbbt s st s st 15

Note 2. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable consists of the following:
Year Ended June 30,

2007 2000
Trade 1eCeivables ..o et $ 3,567,893 § 3,098,978
O e LB RIVADI RS e e e e 138,845 344,221
SUBTOMAL....- .o eveoer oo ee oo eeeeeeeeesseoss e esessseeess e e eeeeesesss e s s e sese oo eeeres § 3,185,588 S 3,443,199
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts.......coooovoiiiiiiiecceeeeeeee e, (17,752) (37.331)
INet aCCoUNES TECEIVADLE ...ttt ettt et et s e a e $ 3688986 5 3405368
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Note 3. Inventories.

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006
Parts and SUPPLICS ..ottt ettt e eeeen S 3.021,355 $ 2,916,893
O T o721 ST PSR 3.431,664 3,189,007
Finished oS ..ot e e 246,666 885,339
6,699,685 6,991,239
Reserve {or ObSOIeSCOICT .ottt (54,472) (32,051)

$ 6645213 § 6,959,188

All of the inventory is owned by the Company and pledged as collateral on notes and mortgages payable at June 30, 2007.
Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment,

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Estimated June 30,
Useful Lives

in Yeurs 2007 2006
Land and related improvements ... 1030 % 4,746,710 § 4697418
Buildings and related iImprovements...........c.cocoovivisinesis i 10-30 10,191,770 10,023,630
ConStrUCtiON-IM-PIOZIESS «.oeieeeeeece ot oo eve e a i e, N/A 322219 369,259
Production molds and related plugs ...l 8 25,736,699 24,685,048
Machinery and eqUIPMENt......oooivvveiici e 3-5 6,325,792 6,078,588
Furniture and fIXtUTeS ... 5 768,985 760,800
Computer EQUIPMETE ...t 5 1,152,731 1,003,404
Transportation €qUIPIMENT. ..o e 5 288,537 280,263
49,533 443 47,898,410
Accumulated depreciation ..........occo i e (33,i04,.217) (30,790.537

S 16,429.226 § 17,107,873

Depreciation expense by asset category was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Land IMProvements.. ... s ) 135,374 § 132,000 § 129,372
Butldings ..o, 326,567 309,695 278,563
MOTAS & PIUES ..ot e 1,392,333 1,214,869 1,111,953
Machinery & equipment ..o 283,781 219.210 218,440
Furniture & fiXIUIes oo 52,553 30,597 16,518
Transportation eqUIPIMCIIt ..o 17,208 23,580 33,422
Computer eqUIPMENt ... e 105,991 90,500 51,900

........................................................................................... $ 2313807 $  2.,020860 § 1,840,168

All of the land, buildings and improvements are owned by the Company and are held as collateral on notes payable and
long term debt at June 30, 2007,

Construction costs of production molds for new and existing product lines are capitalized and depreciated over an
estimated useful life of eight years. Depreciation starts when the production mold is placed in service to manufacture
the product. The costs include the direct materials, direct labor, and an overhead allocation based on a percentage of
direct labor.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company
continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
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lives of its long-lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable.
During 2007 and 2006, the Company reviewed its long-lived asset balances for impairment and no adjustments were
recorded as a result of those reviews.

Note 5, Long-term Debt and Pledged Assets.

On September 19, 2005, the Company entered into a $16,500,000 term foan agreement (the “Loan™) with Regions
Bank. The proceeds from the Loan were used to repay, and concurrently cancel, the long-term loan with Bank of
America. Upon cancellation of the Bank of America loan, the Company expensed that portion of the deferred costs
paid to acquire the loan which had not been amortized during the term of the loan. The amount of the deferred loan
costs expensed in Fiscal 2006 is $229,801. The Loan with Regions Bank matures September 19, 2010 and is secured
by accounts receivable, inventories, property, plant and equipment, death proceeds under certain life insurance policies,
and common stock. Principal payments, beginning at approximately $55,000 and escalating over time, are due
monthly, commencing September 30, 2005, with a final principal payment of $12,646,733 due September 19, 2010.
Interest is payable monthly. The Loan includes $4,125,000 that bears interest, at the Company’s option, under one of
two available methods. The first available interest computation method provides for interest at the higher of the Prime
Rate or the Federal Funds rate plus 1/2%. The second available interest computation method provides for interest at the
sum of (i) the one month LIBOR rate divided by 1.0 minus the Eurodollar Reserve Percentage, and (ji) 1.75%. The
Company may select either of the two interest rate methodologies by providing written notification to Regions Bank.
The balance of the Loan ($12,375,000 at inception) bears interest that has been set at a fixed annual rate of 6.45%
through the use of an interest rate swap. The fixed annual rate of 6.45% is a blended rate that combines the 1.75%
premium over one month LIBOR listed above with a fixed interest rate of 4,70% paid by the Company to the
counterparty under the terms of our interest rate swap agreement, described below.

The Company utilizes interest rate swap agreements to hedge exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates. Under
United States GAAP, an interest rate swap agreement is considered a derivative financial instrument. Due to the nature
of the derivative and the intended use by the Company, the derivative qualifies as a Cash Flow Hedge. As such, SFAS
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ", requires that the value of the derivative be
“marked-to-market” periodically and any change in the market value of the swap be reflected in the financial
statements of the Company. The market value of the derivative is calculated as of the last day of the period and any
change since the end of the previous period is reflected in an adjustment to Stockholders’ Equity in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. During the quarter ended September 30, 2005, the Company terminated a then extant interest rate swap
agreement with Bank of America related to the Bank of America loan, which was repaid during the period. At
termination, that swap agreement with Bank of America resulted in a gain to the Company of $84,524. The Company
entered into a new interest rate swap agreement (the “Swap™) with Regions Bank related to the new Regions Bank loan,
taken during the period. The Swap with Regions Banks has a notional amount of $12,375.000, a term of five years and
a fixed annual rate of 4.70% due to Regions Bank. The Swap has a floating interest rate due to the Company which is
based on LIBOR and is reset monthly. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006 the market value adjustment for the Swap results
in an unrealized gain totaling $209,809 and $370,585 respectively. SFAS No. 133 also requires periodic assessment of
the effectiveness of any instrument designated as a hedge. If the assessment indicates the hedge is less than highly
effective in offsetting the gains or losses incurred by the hedged transaction, the ineffective portion of the hedge must
be reported currently in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations. The results of the assessment as of June
30,2007 indicate that the hedge is highly effective, and we have determined that the ineffective portion is immaterial.

The Loan contains certain restrictive covenants setting forth earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation (EBITDA)
and capital expenditures, which were restructured by Regions Bank on June 27, 2007. These covenants also include a
number of other limitations. including restrictions on capital expenditures, mergers or consolidations, disposal of
assets, investments, incurrence of other indebtedness and payment of dividends. The Company expects to maintain
compliance with these restrictive covenants, and believes that these restrictions will not have a material effect on the
Company’s ability to maintain and improve its facilities and compete with other companies in the boating industry, As
of June 30, 2007 the Company was in compliance with all covenants.

On July 12, 2006, the Company entered into an Agreement (the “Credit Facility™), referenced in the consolidated
balance sheet as notes payable, with Regions Bank that provides for a secured, non-revolving line of credit under which
the Company may obtain up to an aggregate of $5 million in loans from the lender during the one-year term of the
agreement, The Company will use loans it obtains under the Credit Facility to finance its production of boats for
display or demonstration at dealer meetings, boat shows, performance trials and factory demonstrations and that are of
a configuration that are not available from a dealer’s stock. Boats financed with loans under the Credit Facility will be
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sold to dealers afier they are no longer needed by the Company. At June 30, 2007 there was one loan outstanding
under the Credit Facility in the amount of $799,333. That loan has been repaid subsequent to June 30, 2007.

Each loan under the Credit Facility will be repayable in full one year following the loan date or, if earlier, upon the sale
or transfer of the boat that secures that loan. The Company may obtain a six (6) month extension of the maturity of any
loan upon repayment of at least 20 percent (20%) of the outstanding loan amount prior to the lean maturity date. The
Company has fully and unconditionaily guaranteed all obligations under the Credit Facility.

At the Company’s option, and subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit Facility, each loan will bear interest
from the loan date on its unpaid balance at a rate equal to (1) the higher of the federal funds rate, as in effect from time
to time, plus one-half of one percent per annum, or the lender’s prime lending rate as in effect from time to time, or (2}
a rate caiculated as provided in the Loan Agreement based on LIBOR.

The Company’s obligations in connection with each loan under the Credit Facility will be secured by a lien on the boat
for which that loan was obtained. Additionally, collateral documents that the Company entered into with the lender on
September 19, 2005 to secure the Company’s obligations under a $16,500,000 term loan agreement, the Loan,
(including a (1) Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Financing Statement, (2) Security
Agreement, and (3) Pledge Agreement), have been amended to also secure leans under the Credit Facility as well. Asa
result, the Company’s obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by all real estate and all furniture, fixtures and
equipment owned by the Company and associated with its manufacturing facilities, all of the Company’s accounts
receivable, inventory and other assets, and all shares of Fountain Powerboats, Inc. (the subsidiary) capital stock that the
Company owns.

Following is a summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2007:

2007 2006
Regions Bank term loan (the “Loan™) ..., S 15228,697 S 15,940,684
Borrowings against the Cash Surrender Value of key man life insurance
policies owned by the Company. ................ccoviii s 1,500,000 —
Total 1ong term debit. ..o, 16,728,697 15,940,684
Less: Current maturities included in current liabilities: ........cc.cooovvreieiininn,, (759,290} (711,984)

5 15969407 $§ 15228700

The estimated aggregate maturities required on the long-term debt for each of the years ending June 30 are as follows:

008 et ettt e 759,290
ZO0D 1t ettt e e 309,737
0T et 863,537
20T T e et en e en et 12,796,133
No contractual maturity (Cash Surrender Value borrowing) .o.c.coooveeeeiiiiiiiiciiisisee s 1,500,000

§ 16,728,697

Note 6. Stock Options.

Effective July 1, 2005 the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payvment.” (“SFAS No.
123R™) which was issued by the FASB in December 2004. SFAS No. 123R revised SFAS 123 “dccounting for Stock
Based Compensation” and supersedes APB No. 23, “dccounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees,” (APB No. 25) and its
related interpretations. SFAS No. 123R requires recognition of the cost of employee services received in exchange for
an award of equity instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is required to perform the
services in exchange for the award (presumptively the vesting period). SFAS No. 123R also requires measurement of
the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award.

SFAS No. 123R also amends SFAS No. 95 “Statement of Cash Flows” to require that excess tax benefits be reported
as financing cash inflows, rather than as a reduction of taxes paid, which is included within operating cash flows.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective application as permitted under SFAS No.
123R. Accordingly, prior period amounts have not been restated. Under this application, the Company is required to
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record compensation expense for all awards granted after the date of adoption and for the unvested portion of
previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company used the intrinsic value method as prescribed by APB No. 25
and thus recognized no compensation expense for option granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

The Company has two stock option plans in effect at June 30, 2007. All options outstanding as of June 30, 2006 were
fully vested and no new options were issued during the year ended June 30, 2007, therefore no option related
compensation cost has been charged against income for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

On June 21, 1995, the shareholders voted to adopt the 1995 stock option plan. The plan provided 450,000 options to
purchase the common stock to be granted by the Board of Directors to employees or directors of the Company. On
August 4, 1995, the Board of Directors voted to grant the 450,000 stock options to Mr. Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. at
$4.67 per share, exercisable for 10 years from the date granted, on a non-qualified basis. On November 9, 2004, the
shareholders of Fountain Powerboats, Inc. approved an amendment to this plan to permit the Board of Directors to
extend the term of this plan to August 4, 2008. As of June 30, 2007, none of these options have been exercised.

During 1999, the shareholders voted to adopt the 1999 Employee Stock Option Plan (the Plan), which expires

January 11, 2009. Under the Plan, the board is empowered to grant options to purchase up to 120,000 shares of
common stock to employees, officers, directors and consultants of the Company. Additionally, the Board will
determine at the time of granting the vesting provisions and whether the options will qualify as Incentive Stock Options
under Section 422 of the Intenal Revenue Code (Section 422 provides certain tax advantages to the employee
recipients). During the Company’s November 19, 2002 Annual Meeting the shareholders approved amendment of the
1999 Employee Stock Option Plan to increase the number of shares available for issuance under that plan from 120,000
to 175,000 shares. As of June 30, 2007, 88,333 options are available for grant under the plan.

The fair market value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. No options were granted during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

The risk free rate is based upon a U.S. Treasury instrument with a life that is similar to the expected life of the option
grant. Expected volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the price of the Company’s common stock for a
period consistent with the anticipated life of the option granted. The expected term of the options is based upon the
average life of previously issued stock options. The expected dividend yield is based upon current yield on date of
grant. No post-vesting restrictions exist for these options.

A summary of the status of the options granted under the Company’s 1995 and 1999 stock option plans and other
agreements at June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and changes during the periods then ended is presented in the table
below:

2007

2006

2005

Weighted Average

Weighted Average

Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of peried...... 470,000 4.53 500,000 $4.36 560,000 $4.16
Exercised..........ocoooviioiioiieeeeee, 10,000 1.60 — — 26,667 $1.56
Forfeited.............ocoviviieeeee, — — 30,000 $1.60 33,333 $3.37
Outstanding at end of period................ 460,000 4.59 470,000 $4.53 500,000 $4.36
Exercisable at end of peried................. 460,000 4.59 470,000 $4.53 500,000 $4.36
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A summary of the status of the options outstanding under the Company’s stock option plans and other agreements at
June 30, 2007 is presented below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$1.34 10,000 .45 years S 1.34 10,000 $ 1.34
$4.67 450.000 1.10 years 4.67 450,000 4.67
460,000 460,000

The Company had 10,000 options exercised during the year ended June 30, 2007 at an intrinsic value of $22,000. Of
the options outstanding on June 30, 2007, only 10,000 had intrinsic value, totaling $15,400, As of June 30, 2006, the
intrinsic value of options cutstanding was approximately $9,000.

Note 7. Income Taxes.

The Company has provided for deferred income taxes in accordance with SFAS No, 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes”, whereby deferred income taxes are determined based upon the enacted income tax rates for the years in which
these taxes are estimated to be payable or recoverable. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences
resulting from a difference between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial
statements.

The significant components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as

follows:
2007 2006 2005
Current tax provision
Federal. oot S — % — 5 (20,263)
B 1 (=SOSR OT RSO DO OO U UV UUR OO UUUUOUUUOUUOPPPO — — (969}
Total CUrTent 1ax PrOVISION .. cocivirii et sr e seseernes s e e eemeeeeeeesneeenens — — (21,232)
Deferred tax provision
et eral e, (1,158,091} 383,221 292 283
AL et e ettt ettt ettt et e e e et e e eteeete e beante et e e b erae s {259,031) 77,037 63,307
Total deferred taX ProviSiON....o.coioiiiiie e (1,417,122) 460,258 355,590
Provision for income tax expense before adjustment to deferred tax
asset valuation allowance .......cocoooovieeeeveiie e, (1,417,122) 460,258 334,358
Increase (decrease) in valuation alloWanCe . .....cooveee e, 2,700,850  (1,744,004) (355,590)
Net provision {benefit) for iNCOMe tAXES .....oovvvvvvrirrirerrirereceeeemeeees 1,283,728  $(1,283,746) § (21,232)

The difference between the provision (benefil) for income taxes and the amounts computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate of 34% to income before income taxes is summarized below:

2007 2006 2005
Expected income tax expense (benefit) ..o S(1,279.269) § 381,197 $ 249893
Increase {decrease) resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal tax effect......oooviveeiiiiiiiii e (171,347) 51,058 41,165
Nondeductible @XPENSES....oiiiiieiiet e e 37,215 28,004 43,300
Adjustment to deferred tax asset valuation allowance ..........cccoooceeiiieine, 2,700,850 (1,744,004) (355.590)
Other permanent differences ..o (3.721) — —

Provision (benefit) for income tAXes ...ooovvicieceee v $§ 1,283,728 §$(1.283,746) $§ (21,232)




Note 7. Income Taxes. [Continued)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of deferred
taxes at June 30, 2007 and 20606 are as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets relating to:
Inventory capitalization differenCe. ..........cooiviii ettt cee et eet e $ 191,136 $ 180,881
Bad debt allOWANCE ... e ettt ettt 6,843 14,391
Reserve for ObSolete INVENIOTY ..ottt ee e e e e e aeenesns 20.999 12,356
Reserve for BUY DaCKS ...t 24,719 5,960
WALTAINLY FESEIVE ...oiiiiiiiieiie et ettt ettt et et e et e e te st e st esateseteteseteaoteaesrentran 236,576 243,774
Accrued dealer INCENEIVES ......covirie et een e er e e et eeneeeneareenaneas 234,063 299,906
Reserve for health (MSUMAIICE ..ottt ee e eeesasraran 55,898 62,451
Accrued exeCUtive COMPENSALION ..ccovvirrriiiirieieisisss e aesnssesssssssssassssssaree e — 60,170
Net operating 1oss carryforward ... 3,130,059 1,744,639
Charitable contributions carryforward .................ocoovevevooroereeeeceee e, 2,713 892
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward............ocooecvveveivvveeoie e 41,524 41,524
INVESTMEIIt tAX CIEUIS ..o s errersreeereseeseeesseeesseeesssesnsnsensnseeiens 86,294 86,294
Total deferred 1aX ASSBIS .....ovvvivieie it ettt r et et et eeeeeeeaeaaraeens 4,030,826 2,753,238
Less valuation alloWance......ocoviieviieee ettt e et et eeeeeeentaeanes 2,700,850 —
Deferred tax assets net of valuation allOWANCE .........ooeoeie e, 1,329,976 2,753,238
Deferred tax liabilities reiating to:
Property and eQUIPIIENL ..ottt cests s sss s ets st s s st s eeeeeeeea {1,329,976) (1,469,492)
Unrealized Sain 0N SWaD ....o.oooiiee s (80,896} (142,861)
Total deferred tax Hability ......cccoooioiiire oo (1,410,872) (1,612,353
Net recorded deferred tax asset (Hability)........ocoooovieiviiiieeeeeee e $ (80,896) 3 1,140,885

Deferred income taxes are presented in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows at June 30, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Current deferred taX ASSEL. ..o ettt eee e e ree et $ — $ 1,446,018
Noncurrent deferred tax Hability........ocoovvvve oo, (80,896) (305,133)
$ (80,896) § 1,140,885

As of June 30, 2007 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $2,700,850 that were fully offset by a valuation allowance
because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there continued to be doubt as to whether those deferred tax
assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally related to the potential future
benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been generated during the years ended June 30, 2002 and
June 30, 2007 when the Company generated substantial net losses. During the year ended June 30, 2007 the Company
performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax assets. The evaluation resulted in the application of a valuation
allowance.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2007 of approximately $8,208,000 and
$7,449,000, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2027.
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Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies.

Employment Agreement: The Company entered into a one-year employment agreement in 1989 with it’s Chairman,
Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. The agreement provides for automatic one-year renewals at the end of each year subject to
Mr. Fountain’s continued employment. The agreement was reviewed and reaffirmed by the Board of Directors during
the year ended June 30, 2007.

During Fiscal 2005 the Company entered into a one-year employment agreement with R. David Knight, it’s President.
The agreement provides for automatic one-year renewals at the end of each year, subject to Mr. Knight’s continued
employment, and compensation for three years in event of termination or change in status without cause due to change
in control. The agreement was reviewed and revised by the Board of Directors during the year ended June 30, 2006.

Dealer Interest: The Company regularly pays a portion of dealers’ interest charges for floor plan financing. These
interest charges amounted to $1,534,302 for Fiscal 2007, $1,462,821 for Fiscal 2006 and $1,238,274 for Fiscal 2005,
They are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as part of net sales. At June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 the estimated dealer incentive interest included in accrued dealer incentives amounted to $202,791,
§257,050 and $223,542, respectively.

Product Liability and Other Litigation: There were various warranty lawsuits against the Company extant at

June 30, 2007, The Company intends to vigorously defend its interests in these matters. The Company carries sufficient
product liability insurance to cover attorney’s fees and any losses, which may occur from these lawsuits over and above
the insurance deductibles. The Company is also involved from time to time in other litigation through the normal
course of its business. Management believes there are no such undisclosed claims which would have a material effect
on the financial position of the Company.

Manufacturer Repurchase Agreements: The Company makes available through third-party finance companies floor
plan financing for many of its dealers. Sales to participating dealers are approved by the respective tinance companies.
If a participating dealer does not satisfy its obligations under the floor plan financing agreement in effect with its
commercial lender(s) and boats are subsequently repossessed by the lender(s), then under certain circumstances the
Company may be required to repurchase the repossessed boats if it has executed a repurchase agreement with the
fender(s). At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company had a contingent liability to repurchase boats in the event of dealer
defaults and if repossessed by the commercial lenders amounting to $24,375,708 and $35,212,412, respectively. The
Company has reserved for the future losses it might incur upon the repossession and repurchase of boats from
commercial lenders. The amount of the reserve is based upon probable future events, which can be reasonably
estimated. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the allowance for boat repurchases was $64,124 and $15,459, respectively.

401 (k) Pavroll Savings Plan: During Fiscal 1991, the Company initiated a 401(k) Payrol! Savings Plan (the 401(k)
Plan) for all employees. Eligible employees may elect to defer up to twenty-five percent of their salaries. The amounts
deferred by the employees are fully vested at all times. The Company currently matches fifty percent of the employee’s
deferred salary amounts limited to a maximum of six percent of their salaried amounts, or effectively a maximum of
three percent of their salaries. Amounts contributed by the Company vest at a rate of twenty percent per year of service.
Mr. Fountain, by his own election, does not participate in the 401(k} Plan. There are no post-retirement benefit plans in
effect. The Company’s employer contribution to the 401(k) Plan was $125,429 for Fiscal year 2007, $131,626 for
Fiscal 2006 and $113,633 for Fiscal 2003,

Environmental: The Company was notified in 1994 by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™)
that it has been identified as a potential responsible party (“PRP”’) and may incur, or may have incurred, liability for the
remediation of contamination at the Seaboard waste disposal site, located in High Point, North Carelina (also referred
to as the Jamestown, North Carolina site) resulting from the disposal of hazardous substances at that site by a third
party contractor of the Company. The Company’s share of the approximately 14.3 million gallons of waste is 19,245
gallons, a volumetric share ot .1387%. The Company’s liability at this site was defined by the Group administrator to
be $28,105. The Company has entered into a de Minimus Settlement Agreement, which is expected to be executed in
2007. The entire $28,105 liability has been accrued and is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet.




Note 9. Export Sales.

The Company had export sales to customers in the following geographic areas:

Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Canada, Central and South AMEriCa......ccoooie oo $ 3,689071 § 1,849,529 § 2474619
BUEOPE ..ottt et et 4,059,120 2,722,920 1,417.819
IMIAALE EAST...eoeeieeeceeeeee et ettt e e e ee e 455,687 2,753,281 1,088,838
ATICA ot ettt ettt et et ettt — 965,910 410,758
AUBTR ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eeearennr et eranes 300,691 — —
AUSITAIIE L ..ottt ettt ettt et e et e eneaeeeeeareereeseeasesneattereasens 314,418 — —

$ BBIBI98T § 8,291,640 $ 5,392,034
Note 10. Transactions with Related Parties.

The Company expensed the following amounts for apartment rentals owned or controlled by Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.,
the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer: in Fiscal 2007, $3,576; in Fiscal 2006, $25,435; and in Fiscal
2005, $32,358. At June 30, 2007, the Company owed Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. $0 for these rentals.

The Company expensed the following amounts for aircraft services and rentals 1o an entity controlled by Reginald M.
Fountain, Jr.: in Fiscal 2007, $297,785; in Fiscal 2006, $255,339; and in Fiscal 2005, $178,383. At June 30, 2006 the
Company owed 30 in unpaid services to this entity.

The Company expensed $20,000 during Fiscal 2007 related to a race boat owned by Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. The
payment o Mr. Fountain was compensation for the Company’s use of his boat over the course of 5 years for promotion
and demonstration purposes.

A Director of the Company purchased a single boat in Fiscal 2007 for $296,314 and a single boat in Fiscal 2006 for
§211,174, both were at standard wholesale price for the boat model and optional features.

A Director of the Company contributed $28,000 to the Company in Fiscal 2007 and $42,000 in Fiscal 2006 in support
of the Company’s offshore racing program.

Note 11. Concentration of Credit Risk.

Concentration of credit risk arises due to the Company operating in the marine industry, particularly in the United
States. In Fiscal 2007 one dealer accounted for 13.6 percent of sales, one accounted for 9 percent of sales and four each
accounted for 5.0 to 5.5 percent of sales. In Fiscal 2006 one dealer accounted for 10.9 percent of sales, one accounted
for 8.5 percent of sales and four each accounted for 5.8 to 6.3 percent of sales. In Fiscal 2005, one dealer accounted for
10.5 percent of sales, one for 6 percent of sales, and three dealers for 5 percent of sales individually.

Note 12. Earnings per Share.

Basic earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted- average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income
that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate to
outstanding stock options and is determined using the treasury stock method.

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used
in basic earnings pershare ... 4,821,987 4,819,275 4,815,188
Effect of dilutive stock Options .........c.ooeeveieeieicece e — 84,674 74,936
Weighted number of common shares and potential dilutive
common shares outstanding used in dilutive earnings per
BRALE v 4,821,987 4,903,949 4,890,124




For the year ended June 30, 2007, there were 460.000 options that were antidilutive due to the net loss generated by the
Company. These antidilutive options have been omitted from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for that year.
For the years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, there were no antidilutive options outstanding. There were no
adjustments required to be made to net income in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Note 13 — Sales by Product Line.

The Company’s net sales resulted from the following product lines for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
SPOTLS BOATS. ..o oottt $ 28035275 $  31,799.204 $ 33,819,857
EXPICSS CTUISETS 1oeivviiieiieiie ettt e eae et e enaabaan 0.399.064 15,760,240 13,395,691
Sport fishing boats ... ekt ere e ernee s 29,629 864 29,194,788 21,123,893
Non-boat sales including (Service, Parts, Sportswear) 1,745,784 2,471,995 2,842,627
Nt SALES . et $ 68820087 $ 79226224 $  71,182.068

Note 14 — Leases.

The Company leases, under separate non-cancelable operating lease agreements, certain machinery and equipment.
These leases expire at various dates through October 2012. Future rentals under these leases are as follows:

2008 oottt LR bRt e e 105,536
200D e e e e s 105,332
ZOT0 e e e e e 84,516
1 O O PP TS O U PP PSSP SOOI 73,239
2] e e e 16,970

$ 385,593

Rental expense amounted to $106,115, $39,767, and $19,943 during the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Note 15 — Profitability Enhancements.

As shown on the accompanying consolidated financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2007 the Company
recorded a pre-tax loss totaling $3,762,558 and tax expense of $1,283,728, primarily relating to the establishment of a
net deferred tax asset valuation allowance, together resulting in a net loss of $5,046.286, which represents a 56%
reduction of beginning stockholders equity.  While such a significant loss may raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to return to sustained profitability and positive cashflows, management believes such a concern has
been alleviated by steps taken to improve performance. For instance, the number of employees was reduced by 24%
during Fiscal 2007 to a level consistent with the lower sales achieved during Fiscal 2007. Additionally, the Company
is re-engineering its distribution channels to maximize profitability. The compensation plan for the Company’s sales
force has been revised to more closely align compensation with performance. The substantial expenses incurred
during Fiscal 2007 for the development of “lean manufacturing”™ will not be repeated going forward. The Company’s
management is committed to expense reductions, particularly in the areas of support for oftshore powerboat racing
and offshore fishing tournaments.

Nete 16 — Subsequent Event.

The Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary, “Fountain Dealer’s Factory Super Store” effective July 1, 2007 for
the principal purpose of selling Fountain boats at retail in a territory that can be serviced from the Company’s
Washington, North Carolina location and to provide retail sales support and training to its deater network. The
subsidiary will operate out of facilitics owned by the Company. The Company’s initial investment in this subsidiary
totaled $100,000.




FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions Charged
Fiscal 2007 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Balance
Valuation and Qualifving Account Description June 30, 2006 Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions June 30, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ £ 37,331 $ 19,825 3% — $ 39404 $ 17,752
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 32,051 68,071 — 45,650 54,472
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... — 2,700,850 — — 2,700,850
Warranty Expense Reserve ............... 632,357 1,325,133 328,243 1,343,805 941,928
Allowance for Boat Repurchases ....... 15,459 117,879 — 69.214 64,124
Additions Charged
Fiscal 2006 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Balance
Valuatien and Qualifying Account Description June 30, 2005 Expenses to Other Ac¢counts Deductions June 30, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts ....... g 221,572 § 83,546 3 — $ 267,787 $ 37,331
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 72,682 42,060 — 82,691 32,051
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... 1,744,004 (1,744,004) — — —
Warranty Expense Reserve .............. 740,000 26,579 — 134,222 632,357
Allowance for Boat Repurchases ....... 75,000 61,719 — 121,260 15,459
Additions Charged
Fiscal 2005 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Balance
Valuation and Qualifying Account Description June 30, 2004 Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions June 30, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts ....... $ 82,841 § 168,634 § — $ 29,903 $ 221,572
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 50,000 22.682 — e 72,682
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... 2,065,541 (321,537 — — 1,744,004
Warranty Expense Reserve ................ 710,000 892,480 — 862,480 740,000
Allowance for Boat Repurchases ....... 75,000 — — — 75,000

Detailed disclosure of activity in Schedule 11 accounts during Fiscal 2007

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Deductions during Fiscal 2007 to the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts totaled $39,404.
That amount consists of accounts actually written off as bad debt totaling $47,252, which is partially offset by $7,848 from
reversing allowances for accounts, previously determined to be uncollectible, which were properly settled.

Inventory Obsolescence Reserve — During Fiscal 2007, $45,650 of inventory was disposed of and deducted from the reserve.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance — As of June 30, 2007 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $2,700,850 that were
fully offset by a valuation allowance because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there is doubt as to
whether those deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally
related to the potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been generated during the
years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2007 when the Company generated substantial net losses.

Warranty Expense Reserve — The Company records a liability for standard product warranties. The liability is recorded using
historical warranty experience to estimate projected warranty costs. If necessary, the Company adjusts its liability for specific
warranty matters when they become known and are reasonably estimable. The estimate of future warranty liability is
calculated at least once during each quarter and appropriate adjustments are made to this liability account. The adoption of
SAB 108 during Fiscal 2007 resulted in a $328,243 Addition to the Warranty Reserve, and, therefore, Warranty Expense.

Allowance for Boat Repurchases — Deductions during Fiscal 2007 totaled $69,214, reflecting the amount previously reserved
for boats which were sold, subsequent to repurchase, during Fiscal 2007,
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOATS INDUSTRIES, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
UNAUDITED SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Fiscal 2007 *
INEE SALES oo e e § 19413852 § 13,032,786 $ 16475688 $ 19907661
GTOSS PrOTIE. e e 2.875,917 1,123,938 1,374,322 3,749,583
(Loss) Income before taxes ..o (277.670) (2,363.585) {1.640,690) 535,059
Net (l0SS) INCOME ..o {196.670) (1,495.479) (3.873,524) 535,059
Net (loss) income per share:

BASIC oottt (.04) (30 (.80) A1

Diluted oo e, (.04) 30 (.80) N
Fiscal 2006
N SAIES ittt £ 19,157,736 § 18,210,092 S 18526332 § 23,332,064
Gross Profif. et 3,676,114 2,897,702 2,764,533 3,735452
INCOME BefOre tAXES. ... . viivieieeeeee ettt e, 697.058 319,296 22410 82,402
INETINCOIME ittt e et e e et eeneeaas, 697.058 319,296 22,410 1,366,148
Net income per share:

Basic .......... et e et e e etn e e et e e et e et e e en e st e eaaen 14 .07 .00 .29

Diluted ..o 14 07 .00 28
Fiscal 2005
NEESALES Lottt $ 16,742,309 § 17,256,520 § 16,714,140 $ 20,469,100
Gross PrOfIl. oo e 1,993,148 2,375,903 2,891,593 3,649919
[ncome (loss) before taxes. ..o, (373,338) 137,404 359,492 611,422
Net INCOME (LOSS) oo e (373,338) 137,404 360,460 631,686
Nel income (loss) per share:

BaSIC oo {.08) .03 07 A3

DrlUted oo {.08) 03 .07 13

* Quarterly data for Fiscal 2007 is presented after giving the effect of the adoption of SAB 108 as of the first quarter of Fiscal
2007. The sum of quarterly earnings data in this presentation may differ from the Consolidated Statement of Operations due
to the adoption of SAB 108. See Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further discussion of SAB 108.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Independent Registered Public Accounting firms on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.

The information contained under the section captioned “Relationship with Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm”
in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders (the “Proxy
Statement”) is incorporated herein by reference,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
partictpation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
of the eftectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)). Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to ensure that information requtred to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, 1s recorded, processed, summarized and reported. There are inherent
limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures. Even effective disclosure controls and
procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.




Changes have been made in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the
evaluation required under paragraph (d} of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-15 that occurred during the
Company’s last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Documented policies and procedures were implemented to provide a framework
necessary to develop, implement and administer an effective internal control process necessary for the Company to comply
with requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, The Company believes that the implementation has and will
significantly strengthen internal control over financial reporting,

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
Part 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Directors and Executive Officers. Information regarding the Company’s directors and executive officers that appears
under the captions (1) “Proposal 1: Election of Directors,” and (2} “Executive Officers,” in the Company’s definitive
Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of
Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Aundit Committee. Information regarding the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors that appears under
the captions “Committees of our Board — General” and “Audit Committee,” of the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference,

Audit Committee Financial Expert. Information appearing under the caption “Audit Committee Financial Expert” in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Information regarding compliance by the
Company’s directors, executive officers and principal shareholders with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that appears under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics. Information appearing under the caption “Code of Ethics™ in the Company’s definitive Prroxy Statement
to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information appearing under the headings “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,””Compensation Committee
Report,” Executive Compensation” and Director Compensation” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be
filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Beneficial Ownership of Securities and Certain Change in Control Arrangements. Information regarding the
beneficial ownership of the Company’s equity securities, and arrangements that could result in a future change in control
of the Company, appearing under the caption “Beneficial Ownership of Securities” in the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s annual meeting of shareholders is incorporated
herein by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table summarizes all
compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements that were in effect on June 30, 2007, and under which
shares of the Company’s common stock were authorized for issuance.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

(a) (©)

Number of shares (b) Number of shares remaining
1o be issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuunce under
exercise of exercise price of  equity compensation plans (excluding
Plan category cutstanding optivns  outstanding options shares reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders ... 450,000 3 4.67 88,333
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders (1) e 16,000 1.34 —
TOAL e 460,000 § 4.59 88,333

(1) Includes individual options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock held by independent contractors for
10,000 shares at an exercise price of $1.34 per share granted during 2001 and expiring during 2007.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Related Person Transactions. Information appearing under the caption “Transactions with Related Persons™ in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Director Independence. Information appearing under the caption “Corporate Governance — Director Independence”
in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next
Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporate herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information appearing under the caption “Proposal 2. Ratification of Independent Accountants - Services and Fees
During Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2006” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in
connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Part 1V
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a)  Documents filed with Report:

(1) Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are contatned in Item 8
of this Report,

Page
Report of Dixon Hughes PLLC 16
Consolidated balance sheets at June 3¢, 2007 and 2006 17
Consolidated staterments of operations for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 18
Consolidated statements of stockholder’s equity for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 19
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003 20
Notes to consolidated financial statements 22
(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 37

(3)  Exhibits. An index of exhibits that are a part of this Form 10-K appears following the signature page and is
incorporated herein by reference.




Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behaif by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:/S/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.

September 27, 2007 oo Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

IS8/ Reginald M, Fountain, Jr........cccovvvvvvrvrivrenirrenen, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer September 27, 2007
Reginald M. Fountain, JT. .....cococovoeiiiiiiiiiiinnerenees (Principal Executive Officer)

IS/ Craig F.GOSS .o, Director September 27, 2007
Craig F. GOESS oot

IS Guy L. Hecker, Jr. oo Director September 27, 2007
Guy L. Hecker, Jr e

IS8/ David C. Miller ..., Director September 27, 2007
David C. Miller ..o

I8/ Anthony J. ROMEFSQA....oocooovicieeiieiiieeeeeeeeee, Director September 27, 2007
Anthony J. ROMETSa.....cooveriiccrnire e

IS/ Anthony A. Sarandes ...........ccc.oovevevvceinecninn Director September 27, 2007
Anthony A. Sarandes ...

IS/ Mark L. Spenicer ....oococvvevveeccciiiiniiesic s Director September 27, 2007
Mark L. Spencer.....ccovvviiciieccinceinnsnii

IS Irving Lo SMth ..o Chief Financial Officer Septernber 27, 2007
Trving L. Smith. .o (Principal Financial Officer)

IS/ ROZEF F, SCOM.......ccoveeeeerrececvcnnssnsn e e Principal Accounting Officer September 27, 2007
Roger F.SCOtl. e
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Deseription

31

32

4.1

0.1 *

1.2 *

103 *

10.4 *

10.5 *

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10,10

1041

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Registrant’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000)

Registrant’s Bylaws, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2000)

Form of stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005)

Employment Agreement dated March 31, 1989, between Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. and Fountain Powerboats,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003)

Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2004, as amended on October 18, 2004, between R. David Knight
and Fountain Powerboats, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Farm 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003)

Stock Option Agreement dated August 4, 1995, as amended, between Registrant and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
(incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001)

1999 Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999)

1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004)

Master Agreement between Registrant, Fountain Powerboats, Inc., Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. and Brunswick
Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July
17, 2003)

Engine Supply Agreement between Registrant Fountain Powerboats, Inc. and Brunswick Corporation
{incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 17, 2003)

Omnibus Amendment and Agreement dated September 13, 2005, between Brunswick Corporation, Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. (incorporated herein by
reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2005)

Loan Agreement dated September 19, 2003, between Fountain Powerbeats, Inc., Fountain Powerboat Industries,
Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated September 19, 2005)

Loan Agreement dated July 12, 2006, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.,
and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 23, 2006)

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Financing Statement dated September 19, 2005,
between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2005)

First Amendment dated July 12, 2006 to Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents. Security Agreement and Financing
Statement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein
by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23, 2006)

Security Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., Fountain Powerboat
Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated September 19, 2005)

First Amendment dated July 12, 2006, to Security Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain
Powerboats, Inc.. Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to
exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23, 2006)

Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19,
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10.16

10.17

311
312
32

99.1

2005)

First Amendment dated July 12, 2006, to Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23, 20:06)

Second Omnibus Amendment and Agreement dated June 21, 2007, between Brunswick Corporation, Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. (incorporated herein by
reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 25, 2007)

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith)
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a} (filed herewith)

Certifications of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(furnished herewith)

Registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Commission

* Denotes a management compensation plan or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
Required by Rule 13a-14(a}

I. Reginald M. Fountain Jr., certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.;

2. Basced on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements. and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report:

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures io be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
wiich this annual report is being prepared:;

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has matenially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or
persons performing the equivalent functions);

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely atfect the registrant’s ability to record. process. summarize

| and report financial information: and

b. Any fraud. whether or not material, that involves management or other emplovees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 27, 2007 oo IS] Reginald M. Fountain

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
Required by Rule 13a-14(a)

I, Irving L. Smith, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure centrols and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.  All significant deficiencies and materia! weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date; September 27, 2007 .o I8/ Irving L. Smith

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

Certifications
Pursuant to Section 906
Of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

The undersigned hereby certifies that based on their knowledge (i) the foregoing annual report on Form 10-K filed by
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. (the “Company™) for the year ended June 30, 2007, fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the information contained in that Report fairly
presents. in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906. or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by
Section 906, has been provided to Fountain Powerboat (ndustries, Inc. and will be retained by Fountain Powerboat Industries,
Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: September 27, 2007 /S/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 27, 2007 IS/ Irving L. Smith

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer
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Chainman, Chief Executive Cfficer
Fountain Powerboats Industries, Inc. and
Fountain Powerboats, Inc.

Washington, North Carolina

Guy L. Hecker, Jr.

President

Stafford, Burke & Hecker, Inc.
Alexandria, Virginia

David C. Miller, CPA
Owner

David C. Miller, CRPA/ABV
Greenvile, North Carclina

Mark L. Spencer

Fresident

Spencer Communications, Inc.
Montrose, California

Anthony A. Sarandes
Chairman and Consuitant
Eauiflor Corporation
Miami, Florida

Anthony Romersa
Retired
Served as:
» Chief Operating Cfficer
Fountain Powerboats, Inc.
¢ Director Of Planning
Marine Operations of Brunswick Corp.
Bradenton, Florida

Craig Goess

President and Owner
Greenville Toyota, Inc.
Greerwille, North Carolina

Officers

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

R. David Knight
Praesident

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer

Roger Scott
Secretary and Treasurer

Corporate Headquarters

1653 Whichards Beach Road

Fost Office Drawer 457
Washington, North Carolina 27889
252.8975.2000

Common Stock Listing
American Stock Exchange

Notice of Annual Meeting

The annuai meeting will be held on
Tuescay, November 13, 2007 at 10:00
am at the office of the company, 1653
Whichards Beach Road, Washington,
North Carolina

Registrar and Transfer Agent
First Citizens Bank

Mail Code: DACET

P.O. Box 20522

Raleigh, North Carolina 27626
§19.716.2006

Shareholders reguiring a change of
name, address or ownership of stock,
as well as informaticn about shareholder
records, and lost or stolen certificates
should contact First Citizens Bank at the
above address

Legal Counsel
Ward and Smith, PA
New Bern, North Carolina

Auditors
Dixon Hughes PLLC
Greenvile, North Carolina

Market for Company’'s Common Equity
and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's cocmmon stock, $.01

par value, trades on the American Stock
Exchange (under the symbaol "FPB"). The
following table fists the high and low clos-
ing prices for the company’s common
stock as reported on the American Stock
Exchange for sach calendar quarter dur-
g our fiscal years endad June 30, 2006
and 2007

Quarter Ending High Low
September 2005 ... 512 370
December 2005... ..B0O3 345
March 2006.......... .. 862 550
JUna 2008.. ... 870 405
September 2006 ... 455 400
December 2006..... e, 492 3863
March 2007 ... 438 375

The company has not declared or paid
any cash dividends on it's common
stock sinca it first began operations.
inthe future, any declaration and pay-
ment of cash dividends will be subject
to the Board of Directors’ evaluation

of the company's oparating resutts,
financial condition, future growth plans,
general business and economic condi-
tions and other refevant considerations.
Management of the Company expects
that, for the foreseesable future, prof-

its generated by the company will be
retained as additicnal capital 1o support
the company's operations and that the
Company will not pay any cash dividends.

On June 30, 2007 there were 208 hold-
ers of record for the Company's com-
mon Stock






